
 
 
 

AGENDA MATERIALS 
 

TRI-DAM PROJECT 
 

 
 

TRI-DAM POWER 
AUTHORITY 

 

 
 

BOARD MEETING 
 
 
 

September 15, 2022 



 

  

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

AGENDA 

TRI-DAM PROJECT 

 of THE OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT and  

THE SOUTH SAN JOAQUIN IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

SEPTEMBER 15, 2022 

    9:00 A.M. 

 

Oakdale Irrigation District 

1205 East F Street 

Oakdale, CA  95361 

* SEE BELOW FOR INSTRUCTIONS REGARDING PUBLIC COMMENT AND 

PARTICIPATION  
 
 

NOTICE:  Coronavirus (COVID-19) 

 

A COMPLETE COPY OF THE AGENDA PACKET WILL BE AVAILABLE ON THE OAKDALE 

IRRIGATION DISTRICT WEB SITE (www.oakdaleirrigation.com) ON MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 

15, 2022 AT 9:00 A.M.  ALL WRITINGS THAT ARE PUBLIC RECORDS AND RELATE TO AN 

AGENDA ITEM WHICH ARE DISTRIBUTED TO A MAJORITY OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING NOTICED ABOVE WILL BE 

MADE AVAILABLE ON THE OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT WEB SITE 

(www.oakdaleirrigation.com). 

 

INFORMATION FOR MEETING DURING CONTINUED PROCLAIMED STATE OF 

EMERGENCY   

(Effective 3/27/2020 – until further notice): 

 

Pursuant to California Governor Gavin Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20, a local legislative body is 

authorized to hold public meetings via teleconferencing and to make public meetings accessible 

telephonically or otherwise electronically to all members of the public who wish to participate and to 

provide public comment to the local legislative body during the current health emergency. The Tri-Dam 

Project and Tri-Dam Power Authority Board of Directors (Tri-Dam Directors) will adhere to and 

implement the provisions of the Governor’s Executive Order related to the Brown Act and the 

utilization of technology to facilitate participation. 

 

*The location of the Tri-Dam meeting will be at the office of the Oakdale Irrigation District, 1205 East 

F Street, Oakdale and will be open to the public based on a reservation system.  Be advised these 

facilities only have 3 – 4 seats available for public access due to implemented protection measures for 

the COVID-19 virus.   

 

**Public members who wish to participate, listen to, and provide comment on agenda items can 

do so by telephone by calling 1 (669) 900-9128, Access Code: 358-572-1867#.  All speakers 

commenting on Agenda Items are limited to five (5) minutes.   

 

http://www.oakdaleirrigation.com/
http://www.oakdaleirrigation.com/


 

Members of the public may also submit public comments in advance by e-mailing 

nfiez@oakdaleirrigation.com by 4:30 p.m., Wednesday, September 14, 2022.  

 

In addition to the mandatory conditions set forth above, the Tri-Dam Directors will use sound discretion 

and make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as reasonably possible to the provisions of the Brown 

Act, and other applicable local laws regulating the conduct of public meetings. 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, a person requiring an accommodation, 

auxiliary aid, or service to participate in this meeting should contact the Executive Assistant at (209) 

840-5504, as far in advance as possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event.  Best 

efforts will be made to fulfill the request.  
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

ROLL CALL:  John Holbrook, Bob Holmes, Dave Kamper, Glenn Spyksma, Mike Weststeyn 

Brad DeBoer, Herman Doornenbal, Tom Orvis, Linda Santos, Ed Tobias 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR                ITEMS 1 - 6 

1. Discuss and consider adoption of Resolution TDP 2022-15 to implement teleconferencing 

requirements during a proclaimed state of emergency. 

2. Approve the regular board meeting minutes of August 25, 2022. 

3. Approve the June, July, August statement of obligations. 

4. Approve renewal of Anthem Medical Plan Insurance Coverage effective January 1, 2023. 

5. Approve renewal of Delta Dental Insurance Plan Coverage effective January 1, 2023. 

6. Approve renewal of Vision Services Plan Insurance Coverage effective January 1, 2023. 

 

 

ACTION CALENDAR              ITEMS 7 - 13 

 

7. Consider approval of the 2021 Audited Financial Statements – Presentation by Fedak & Brown LLP. 

 

8. Review and take possible action to approve the Financial Statements for the six months ending June 

30, 2022. 
 

9. Review and take possible action to approve Resolution TDP 2022-16 District Distribution.  
 

10. Review and take possible actions to authorize the Interim General Manager to sign a Professional 

Services Agreement with Provost & Pritchard for roadway design along Hells Half Acre Roadway 

(5N95) – USFS. 

11. Review and take possible action to authorize the Interim General Manager to sign a Professional 

Services Agreement with Provost & Pritchard for Design and Engineering Services for the Tulloch 

Spillway Road Project – Phase 1. 

12. Review and take possible action to approve PG&E Islanding Letter Agreement 

mailto:nfiez@oakdaleirrigation.com


 

13. Review and take possible action to approve an amendment to the budget to include the reroofing of 

both Donnells Powerhouse and Cottage, and authorize the General Manager to solicit competitive 

bids and award to the lowest qualifying bidder. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS                                                                       ITEMS 14 - 17 

14. Staff reports as follows: 

a. General Manager Report 

b. Operations & Maintenance Report 

c. Compliance Report 

 

15. Generation Report 

16. Fisheries studies on the Lower Stanislaus River 

17. Directors’ Comments 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION                                                                                      ITEM 18 

18. a. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

 Government Code § 54956.9(d)(1) 

 

1. Lee Tyler et al. v Oakdale Irrigation; et al. 

 Calaveras Superior Court Case No. 17CV42319 

 

2. SJTA v. State Water Resources Control Board 

 Judicial Council Coordination Proceeding 5013 

 

b. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

 Possible Initiation of Litigation 

 Government Code § 54956.9(d)(4) 

 Four (4) cases 

 

c. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

 Significant Exposure to Litigation 

 Government Code § 54956.9(d)(2) 

 Two (2) cases 

 

d. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT 

 Government Code sec. 54957(b) 

1. General Manager 

2. Finance & Administrative Manager 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT                                                                                             ITEM 19 

19.  Adjourn to the next regularly scheduled meeting 



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

            Date:  9/15/2022 
            Staff:  Mia Brown  

 

 
SUBJECT:  Resolution TDP 2022-15 to Implement Teleconferencing Requirements during a 

Proclaimed State of Emergency 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution TDP 2022-15 proclaiming a local emergency, which 

authorizes remote teleconference meetings.  
 

 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
On September 17, 2021 Assembly Bill 361 (AB 361) was signed and took effect on October 1, 2021.  
AB 361 replaced some provisions of Executive Order N-29-20, which allows local legislative bodies to 
hold remote teleconference meetings.  The resolution will allow the Project a thirty (30) day period to 
continue remote meetings, or until conditions improve or the Executive Order is cancelled.  A 
subsequent resolution will need to be passed every thirty days to continue the remote meetings.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Resolution TDP 2022-15 
 
 
 

 

Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
 
VOTE:  
OID:  DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Orvis (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) Tobias (Yes/No)  
 
SSJID: Holbrook (Yes/No) Holmes (Yes/No) Kamper (Yes/No) Spyksma (Yes/No) Weststeyn 
(Yes/No) 



TRI-DAM PROJECT 

RESOLUTION No. TDP 2022-15 

RESOLUTION TO IMPLEMENT TELECONFERENCING REQUIREMENTS 

DURING A PROCLAIMED STATE OF EMERGENCY 

 

WHEREAS, the Ralph M. Brown Act requires that all meetings of a legislative body of a local 

agency be open and public and that any person may attend and participate in such meetings; 

 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act allows for legislative bodies to hold meetings by teleconference, 

but imposes specific requirements for doing so;  

 

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, in order to address the need for public meetings during the 

present public health emergency, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order No. N-29-20, 

suspending the Act’s teleconferencing requirements; and 

 

WHEREAS, on June 11, 2021, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order No. N-8-21, 

continuing the suspension of the Brown Act’s teleconferencing requirements through September 

30, 2021; and  

 

WHEREAS, these Executive Orders allowed legislative bodies to meet virtually as long as 

certain notice and accessibility requirements were met; and  

 

WHEREAS, the State Legislature amended the Brown Act through Assembly Bill No. 361 (AB 

361) on September 16, 2021; and  

 

WHEREAS, AB 361 amended the Brown Act so that a local agency may use teleconferencing 

without complying with the regular teleconferencing requirements of the Act, where the 

legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and makes certain 

findings; and  

 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 54953 requires that the legislative body make additional 

findings every 30 days in order to continue such teleconferencing. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Tri-Dam Project hereby finds, determines, 

declares, orders, and resolves as follows: 

 

1. That the foregoing recitals are true and correct and incorporates them by this reference. 

 

2. The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Tri-Dam Project (“TDP”) finds, by a majority 

vote, the following: 

 

a. That there exists a proclaimed state of emergency; and 

 

b. State or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social 

distancing.  

 



3. TDP staff is authorized to take all steps and perform all actions necessary to execute and 

implement this Resolution in compliance with Government Code section 54953. 

 

4. That this Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall remain in effect for thirty 

(30) days thereafter, provided the conditions set forth in Section 2 remain. 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Tri-Dam Project this 15th day of 

September, 2022, by the following vote: 

 
 OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT              SOUTH SAN JOAQUIN IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

 

AYES:  

 

NOES:  

 

ABSENT:      

 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT               SOUTH SAN JOAQUIN IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

 

________________________          _______________________________ 

Tom D. Orvis, President            Robert A. Holmes, President 

 

_________________________          ________________________________ 

Scot A. Moody, Secretary           Peter M. Rietkerk, Secretary 

 



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

           Date: 9/15/2022  
           Staff: Dawn Driesen  

 

 
SUBJECT:  Tri-Dam Project August 2022 Minutes 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Recommend Approval of August 25, 2022 Minutes   
 

 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: August 25, 2022 Minutes 
 
 
 

 

Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
 
VOTE:  
OID:  DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Orvis (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) Tobias (Yes/No)  
 
SSJID: Holbrook (Yes/No) Holmes (Yes/No) Kamper (Yes/No) Spyksma (Yes/No) Weststeyn 
(Yes/No) 



 

Page 1 
TDP August 25, 2022 

 

TRI-DAM PROJECT 

MINUTES OF THE JOINT BOARD 

OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 
 

August 25, 2022 

Strawberry, California 

 

The Joint Boards of Directors of the Oakdale Irrigation District and the South San Joaquin 

Irrigation District met in joint session at the office of Tri-Dam Project in Strawberry, California, 

on the above date for the purpose of conducting business of the Tri-Dam Project, pursuant 

to the resolution adopted by each of the respective Districts on July 29, 1955. 

 

President Holmes called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m. 

 

DIRECTORS PRESENT: 

 

 OID DIRECTORS      SSJID DIRECTORS 

 BRAD DeBOER       BOB HOLMES 

 HERMAN DOORNENBAL     GLENN SPYKSMA 

 ED TOBIAS       MIKE WESTSTEYN 

 

Also Present: 

Jeff Shields, Interim General Manager, Tri-Dam Project; Scot A. Moody, General Manager, 

OID; Peter Rietkerk, General Manager, SSJID; Sharon Cisneros, Chief Financial Officer, 

OID; Sonya Williams, Finance and Administration Manager, SSJID; Mia Brown, General 

Counsel, SSJID; Susan Larson, License Compliance Coordinator, Tri-Dam Project; Chris 

Tuggle, Operations and Maintenance Manager, Tri-Dam Project. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

None. 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

ITEM #1 Approve the regular board meeting minutes of July 21, 2022. 

ITEM #2 Approve adoption of Resolution TDP 2022-12 to implement 

teleconferencing requirements during a proclaimed state of emergency. 

  

TRI-DAM PROJECT RESOLUTION No. TDP 2022-12 
RESOLUTION TO IMPLEMENT TELECONFERENCING REQUIREMENTS 

DURING A PROCLAIMED STATE OF EMERGENCY 
 



 

Page 2 
TDP August 25, 2022 

 

WHEREAS, the Ralph M. Brown Act requires that all meetings of a legislative body of a 
local agency be open and public and that any person may attend and participate in such 
meetings; 

 
WHEREAS, the Brown Act allows for legislative bodies to hold meetings by 
teleconference, but imposes specific requirements for doing so; 

 
WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, in order to address the need for public meetings during 
the present public health emergency, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order No. 
N-29-20, suspending the Act’s teleconferencing requirements; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 11, 2021, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order No. N-8-21, 
continuing the suspension of the Brown Act’s teleconferencing requirements through 
September 30, 2021; and 

 
WHEREAS, these Executive Orders allowed legislative bodies to meet virtually as 
long as certain notice and accessibility requirements were met; and 

 
WHEREAS, the State Legislature amended the Brown Act through Assembly Bill No. 361 
(AB361) on September 16, 2021; and 

 
WHEREAS, AB 361 amended the Brown Act so that a local agency may use 
teleconferencing without complying with the regular teleconferencing requirements of the 
Act, where the legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency 
and makes certain findings; and 

 
WHEREAS, Government Code section 54953 requires that the legislative body make 
additional findings every 30 days in order to continue such teleconferencing. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Tri-Dam Project hereby finds, 
determines, declares, orders, and resolves as follows: 

 
1.   That the foregoing recitals are true and correct and incorporates them by this 
reference. 

 
2.   The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Tri-Dam Project (“TDP”) finds, by a 

majority vote, the following: 
 

a.   That there exists a proclaimed state of emergency; and 
 

b.   State or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to 
promote social distancing. 

3.   TDP staff is authorized to take all steps and perform all actions necessary to 
execute and implement this Resolution in compliance with Government Code 
section 54953. 

 



 

Page 3 
TDP August 25, 2022 

 

4.   That this Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall remain in effect for thirty 
(30) days thereafter, provided the conditions set forth in Section 2 remain. 

 

Director Doornenbal noted that a correction was need in the July 21, 2022 minutes.  Director 

DeBoer arrived at 9:19, not Director Doornenbal. 

 

Director DeBoer moved to approve the consent calendar with the noted correction.  Director 

Spyksma seconded the motion. 

 

The motion passes by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: Holmes, Spyksma, Weststeyn, DeBoer, Doornenbal, Tobias 

NOES:  None 

ABSTAINING:  None 

ABSENT:  Holbrook, Kamper, Orvis, Santos 

 

ACTION CALENDAR 

 

ITEM #3 Review and Take Possible Action to Adopt Resolution TDP 2022-13 for 

Designation of Bank Account Signatories on the Oak Valley Community Bank and the 

US Bank accounts. 

 

Director Spyksma moved to approve as presented.  Director Doornenbal seconded the 

motion. 

 

The motion passes by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: Holmes, Spyksma, Weststeyn, DeBoer, Doornenbal, Tobias 

NOES:  None 

ABSTAINING:  None 

ABSENT:  Holbrook, Kamper, Orvis, Santos 

 

TRI-DAM PROJECT  

Oakdale Irrigation District 

South San Joaquin Irrigation District 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. TDP 2022-13 
 

DESIGNATION OF BANK ACCOUNTS AND SIGNATORIES 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Joint Board of Directors of said Tri-Dam Project desires that specific 
persons be authorized to deposit funds in and withdraw funds from said accounts, with the 
full power to endorse and sign documents required to accomplish such purposes. 

 



 

Page 4 
TDP August 25, 2022 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the specific accounts referred to and the 
persons designated to sign on each of said accounts together with their respective official 
titles, are as follows: 

 
BANK: Oak Valley Community Bank (All 

accounts) US Bank (All accounts) 
 

CHECK SIGNATORIES: 
 

Peter M. Rietkerk, General Manager, South San Joaquin Irrigation District 
Scot A. Moody, General Manager, Oakdale Irrigation District 
Sharon Cisneros, Chief Financial Officer, Oakdale Irrigation District 
Sonya Williams, Finance and Administration Manager, South San Joaquin 
Irrigation District 
Jeffrey K. Shields, Interim General Manager, Tri-Dam Project 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that two signatures from the “CHECK SIGNATORIES” 
listed above are required on checks. 

 
 
ITEM #4 Review and Take Possible Action to Adopt Resolution TDP 2022-14 for 

Designation of Bank Account Signatories on the California Local Agency 

Investment Fund (LAIF) accounts. 

 

Director Doornenbal moved to approve as presented.  Director Weststeyn seconded the 

motion. 

 

The motion passes by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: Holmes, Spyksma, Weststeyn, DeBoer, Doornenbal, Tobias 

NOES:  None 

ABSTAINING:  None 

ABSENT:  Holbrook, Kamper, Orvis, Santos 

 

TRI-DAM PROJECT  
Oakdale Irrigation District 

South San Joaquin Irrigation District 
 

RESOLUTION NO. TDP 2022-14 
 

AUTHORIZING INVESTMENT OF MONIES IN THE LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND 
 

AGENCY ADDRESS:  31885 Old Strawberry Road AGENCY PHONE NUMBER:  209-965-3996 

                               Strawberry, CA 95375 

  



 

Page 5 
TDP August 25, 2022 

 

WHEREAS, The Local Agency Investment Fund is established in the State Treasury under 

Government Code section 16429.1 et. seq. for the deposit of money of a local agency for 

purposes of investment by the State Treasurer; and 

WHEREAS, the joint Board of Directors hereby finds that the deposit and withdrawal of 

money in the Local Agency Investment Fund in accordance with Government Code section 

16429.1 et. seq. for the purpose of investment as provided therein is in the best interests of 

the Tri-Dam Project; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the joint Board of Directors hereby authorizes 

the deposit and withdrawal of the Tri-Dam Projects monies in the Local Agency Investment 

Fund in the State Treasury in accordance with Government Code section 16429.1 et. seq. 

for the purpose of investment as provided therein. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, as follows: 

Section 1. The following Oakdale Irrigation District, and South San Joaquin Irrigation 

District officers holding the title(s) specified herein below or their successors in office are 

each hereby authorized to order the deposit or withdrawal of monies in the Local Agency 

Investment Fund and may execute and deliver any and all documents necessary or 

advisable in order to effectuate the purposes of this resolution and the transaction 

contemplated hereby. 

ITEM #5 Review and Take Possible Action to Approve 2022 Annual FERC 

Administrative Fees. 

 

Director Weststeyn moved to approve as presented.  Director Doornenbal seconded the 

motion. 

 

The motion passes by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: Holmes, Spyksma, Weststeyn, DeBoer, Doornenbal, Tobias 

NOES:  None 

ABSTAINING:  None 

ABSENT:  Holbrook, Kamper, Orvis, Santos 

 

ITEM #6 Discussion and update on the Status of the 2021 Audited Financial Report 

and other Finance Activities. 

 

Jeff Shields gave an update on the current situation.  He stated that staff has been very 

helpful.  The 2021 Audited Financial Report has been finalized and will be presented to the 

Board by the auditors at a later date.  Sharon Cisneros stated that the Financial 

Statements would be presented at the next meeting. 

  



 

Page 6 
TDP August 25, 2022 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 

 

ITEM #7 Staff Reports 

 

A. Interim General Manager, Jeff Shields  

 Mr. Shields stated that Tri-Dam staff has reached a safety milestone.  As of August 

9, 2022, they have reached 1,000 consecutive days without a lost time injury.   

 Mr. Shields recently had a conference call with the Z Global representatives 

regarding their services related to power marketing for the expiring SVP Power 

Purchase Agreement.   

 He is redrafting the Finance and Administration job description. 

 He is currently reviewing security and safety issues concerning the Tri-Dam 

facilities. 

 Mr. Shields discussed PG&E’s request to release more water in September. 

b. Operations and Maintenance Manager, Chris Tuggle 

 Mr. Tuggle stated that they recently had trespassers at Tulloch Dam.   

 Recently had an inspection of the Beardsley Tunnel. 

 Mr. Tuggle recently attended the monthly operations coordination meeting with 

PG&E. 

 Mr. Tuggle gave an update on the current and future maintenance projects.  He 

stated that he would be bringing several projects to the Board for approval. 

 A relieve valve at Beardsley was inoperable and, thanks to the Tri-Dam staff, it has 

been repaired. 

c. License Compliance Coordinator, Susan Larson 

 Day use site is close to being done and the security is functional. 

 Road that was damaged from floods is being rebuilt.  Provost & Pritchard are 

preparing a design that is wider and decreases the steepness. 

 Ms. Larson stated that they are moving forward with proposals for the Tulloch spillway 

road. 

ITEM #8 GENERATION REPORT 

No Discussion 

ITEM #9 FISHERIES STUDIES ON LOWER STANISLAUS RIVER 

No Discussion 

ITEM #10 DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS 

Director Tobias thanked the staff and appreciates them keeping things moving.  All 

Directors also thanked them. 



 

Page 7 
TDP August 25, 2022 

 

Recess to Tri-Dam Power Authority 

Director Doornenbal recessed to the Tri-Dam Power Authority Board of Commissioners 

meeting at 10:09 a.m. 

The Tri-Dam Project meeting resumed at 10:12 a.m. after the Tri-Dam Power Authority 

meeting adjourned. 

Director Holmes announced before closed session that the following items would be 

discussed. 

ITEM #11 CLOSED SESSION 

11.  a. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING 
LITIGATION Government Code § 54956.9(d)(1) 

 
1. Tri-Dam v. MWH Americas, Inc., et al. 

Tuolumne County Superior Court, Case No. CV61638 
 

2. SJTA v. State Water Resources Control Board 
Judicial Council Coordination Proceeding 5013 

 
b. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED 

LITIGATION Possible Initiation of Litigation 
Government Code § 
54956.9(d)(4) Four (4) cases 

 
c. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED 

LITIGATION Significant Exposure to Litigation 
Government Code § 
54956.9(d)(2) Two (2) cases 

 
d. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT 

Government Code sec. 
54957(b) 
1.   General Manager 
2.   Finance & Administrative Manager 

 
At the hour of 12:21 p.m., the Board reconvened to open session. 
 
Disclosure of reportable actions taken in Closed Session, pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54957.1: There were no reportable actions taken in closed session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Director Holmes adjourned the meeting at 12:21 p.m. 
 
The next regular board meeting is scheduled for September 15, 2022, at the offices of 
Oakdale Irrigation District beginning at 9:00 a.m. 



 

Page 8 
TDP August 25, 2022 

 

 
ATTEST 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeff Shields, Interim Secretary 
Tri-Dam Project 



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

           Date: 9/15/2022  
           Staff: Genna Modrell  

 

 
SUBJECT:  Tri-Dam Project Statement of Obligations June, July & August  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Recommend Approval of June, July & August Statement of Obligations  
 

 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
Submitted for approval is the June, July & August Statement of Obligations for Tri-Dam Project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: See Attachments 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Tri-Dam Project Statement of Obligations 
 

 

Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
 
VOTE:  
OID:  DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Orvis (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) Tobias (Yes/No)  
 
SSJID: Holbrook (Yes/No) Holmes (Yes/No) Kamper (Yes/No) Spyksma (Yes/No) Weststeyn 
(Yes/No) 



Tri-Dam Project

Statement 

of 

Obligations

Period Covered

June 1, 2022 to June 30, 2022



TRI-DAM PROJECT

STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

Period Covered

    One-Half Oakdale Irrigation District 384,754.47$              

    One-Half South San Joaquin Irrigation Distict 384,754.47$              

    Total Obligations  $              769,508.94 

CERTIFICATION

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT SOUTH SAN JOAQUIN IRRIGATION DISTRICT

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Thomas D. Orvis John Holbrook

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Ed Tobias Robert A. Holmes

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Linda Santos Dave Kamper

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Herman Doornenbal Glenn Spyksma

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Brad DeBoer Mike Weststeyn

Each of the undersigned certifies that he is President or Secretary of his respective District; 

That the amounts designated above have been properly incurred as an obligation of the Tri-Dam Project; that 

checks for payment of said amounts have been drawn on a Tri-Dam Project account at Oak Valley Community 

Bank, Sonora, California.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT SOUTH SAN JOAQUIN IRRIGATION DISTRICT

PRESIDENT, PRESIDENT,

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Thomas D. Orvis Robert A. Holmes

SECRETARY, SECRETARY,

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Scot A. Moody                            Date Peter M. Rietkerk Date

June 1, 2022 to June 30, 2022



Tri Dam Project
Statement of Obligations

Period Covered

From       To

June 1, 2022 to June 30, 2022

No. Chks. Amount

Vendor Check Register Report

(Please see attached Check Listing) 65 $534,168.08

Payrolls - Net Charges

Pay Date Type Payroll Amount

09-Jun-22 Payroll 113,665.15$              

23-Jun-22 Payroll 121,675.71$              

Total Net Payroll 235,340.86$              235,340.86$                

Total Disbursements for the Period $769,508.94

Distribution Between Districts ~

Oakdale Irrigation District 384,754.47$                

South San Joaquin Irrigation District 384,754.47$                

Total Districts 769,508.94$                



 

Check 

Number

Vendor 

No Vendor Name Check Date Description Amount

128934 10133 CA Dept. Water Resources 06/03/2022 Annual Dam Fees 291,717.00

128980 11244 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. 06/17/2022 Insurance 71,099.36

128983 10900 Chase Cardmember Service 06/17/2022 Fuel, small tools, meals, USSD conference, travel, batteries 35,024.39

128977 11343 Tim O'Laughlin, PLC 06/16/2022 Legal Fees 21,395.00

128973 10815 Cal PERS System 06/09/2022 EE/ER Retirement Plan 19,178.92

128978 11389 Paris Kincaid Wasiewski 06/16/2022 Legal Fees 12,530.00

128952 10946 EnerSys Delaware Inc. 06/09/2022 Microwave Battery Bank - DPH, TPH, SPH 9,787.84

128938 10250 Downey Brand Attorneys LLP. 06/03/2022 Tulloch Litigaton 6,712.70

128939 10946 EnerSys Delaware Inc. 06/03/2022 Batteries - Strawberry 6,405.12

128945 10778 Watermark Engineering Inc. 06/03/2022 Streamgaging 6,175.00

128992 10908 McMillen Jacobs Associates 06/17/2022 FERC Part 12D Inspections & Reporting 5,940.00

128975 10812 Nationwide Retirement Solution 06/09/2022 EE Retirement Plan 4,561.59

128986 10993 Dillon and Murphy Consulting Civil Engineers06/17/2022 Tulloch Receation Site 3,908.00

128971 10813 ACWA Joint Powers Insurance Authority 06/09/2022 EE Health Benefits 3,061.32

128990 11411 Richard & Leslie & Sheryl Heida 06/17/2022 Tulloch Performanc Deposit Refund 3,000.00

128984 10935 Data Path, Inc. 06/17/2022 Network Support 2,708.00

128944 10771 W.D. Edwards Co. LLC 06/03/2022 Tuloch Spillway Erosion & Dam Safety 2,600.00

128954 11379 Foust Heat Air Refrigeration 06/09/2022 Finish Ductless Installation - Ops & Maint. Mgr., Strawberry 2,150.00

128969 10776 Waste Mgmt of Cal Sierra Inc. 06/09/2022 Disposal 1,993.50

128974 10811 IBEW 06/09/2022 EE Union Dues 1,330.46

128965 11274 PAR Environmental Services, Inc. 06/09/2022 Hells Half Acre Access 1,292.50

128989 10347 HDR Engineering Inc. 06/17/2022 Data Recoery - Beardsley 1,264.64

128993 11128 Pape Kenworth 06/17/2022 Sensor Repair - Dump Truck 1,249.32

128964 11128 Pape Kenworth 06/09/2022 Sensor Repair - Water Truck 1,227.30

128940 10439 McMaster-Carr Supply Co. 06/03/2022 Terminal cover, end block & stop, small tools 1,226.59

128979 10891 Wagner & Bonsignore Consulting Civil Engineers06/16/2022 Water Rights Reporting 1,170.75

128991 10879 Lowe's 06/17/2022 Paint, small tools, locks, bbq & accessories 1,096.82

128936 10225 Debco Automotive Supply Inc. 06/03/2022 Bearing & seal repair 88-1T, coupler & air hoses 20-3 1,096.52

128941 11396 Hydra Pro 06/03/2022 Office Cleaning 1,000.00

128946 11365 West Coast Energy Systems LLC 06/03/2022 970.90

128972 10183 Cal PERS S457 Plan 06/09/2022 925.00

128955 10319 General Plumbing Supply Co Inc. 06/09/2022 795.65

128962 10439 McMaster-Carr Supply Co. 06/09/2022 764.06

128976 10663 Standard Insurance Co. 06/09/2022 760.10

128959 11049 Hunt & Sons, Inc. 06/09/2022 634.84

128937 10227 Del Oro Water Co. Inc. 06/03/2022 611.81

128956 10320 General Supply Co. 06/09/2022 598.30

128960 10364 Hurst Ranch Feed 06/09/2022 537.97

128997 10718 Tractor Supply Credit Plan 06/17/2022 477.16

128947 10013 Acme Rigging and Supply Co. Inc. 06/09/2022 457.19

128996 10665 Staples 06/17/2022 426.63

128951 10264 El Dorado Septic Serv Inc. 06/09/2022 418.28

128949 11010 Calaveras County Water District 06/09/2022 393.62

128958 10938 Great America Financial Svcs. 06/09/2022 358.42

128998 10776 Waste Mgmt of Cal Sierra Inc. 06/17/2022 332.97

128981 10068 AT&T Corp - Data Link 06/17/2022 293.15

128985 10225 Debco Automotive Supply Inc. 06/17/2022 278.04

128953 11048 Fastenal (Vending) 06/09/2022 235.12

128943 11258 Verizon 06/03/2022 212.35

128963 10466 Mountain Oasis Water Systems & Btl Co LLC06/09/2022 201.00

128994 10904 Sonora Ford 06/17/2022 187.49

128942 10696 T & C Signs 06/03/2022 179.30

128966 10623 Sierra Rock Products Inc. 06/09/2022 169.00

128982 10866 AT&T Teleconference Services 06/17/2022 163.72

128935 10184 Clark Pest Control - Pest 06/03/2022 160.00

June Checks by Amount

Project



128988 10288 Fastenal Co. 06/17/2022 134.04

128970 11322 Weidmann Electrical Technology Inc. 06/09/2022 132.50

128948 11086 Benefit Resource, Inc. 06/09/2022 125.00

128950 10154 Calaveras Telephone Co. 06/09/2022 114.48

128957 10333 Grainger Inc. W. W. 06/09/2022 65.21

128987 11048 Fastenal (Vending) 06/17/2022 49.46

128995 11005 Sonora Lumber Company 06/17/2022 39.24

128967 11005 Sonora Lumber Company 06/09/2022 30.20

128961 10399 JS West Propane Gas 06/09/2022 22.22

128968 10749 UPS 06/09/2022 11.02

Report Total: 534,168.08$       



Tri-Dam Project

Statement 

of 

Obligations

Period Covered

July 1, 2022 to July 31, 2022



TRI-DAM PROJECT

STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

Period Covered

    One-Half Oakdale Irrigation District 698,670.16$              

    One-Half South San Joaquin Irrigation Distict 698,670.17$              

    Total Obligations  $           1,397,340.33 

CERTIFICATION

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT SOUTH SAN JOAQUIN IRRIGATION DISTRICT

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Thomas D. Orvis John Holbrook

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Ed Tobias Robert A. Holmes

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Linda Santos Dave Kamper

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Herman Doornenbal Glenn Spyksma

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Brad DeBoer Mike Weststeyn

Each of the undersigned certifies that he is President or Secretary of his respective District; 

That the amounts designated above have been properly incurred as an obligation of the Tri-Dam Project; that 

checks for payment of said amounts have been drawn on a Tri-Dam Project account at Oak Valley Community 

Bank, Sonora, California.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT SOUTH SAN JOAQUIN IRRIGATION DISTRICT

PRESIDENT, PRESIDENT,

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Thomas D. Orvis Robert A. Holmes

SECRETARY, SECRETARY,

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Scot A. Moody                            Date Peter M. Rietkerk Date

July 1, 2022 to July 31, 2022



Tri Dam Project
Statement of Obligations

Period Covered

From       To

July 1, 2022 to July 31, 2022

No. Chks. Amount

Vendor Check Register Report

(Please see attached Check Listing) 104 $1,156,181.71

Payrolls - Net Charges

Pay Date Type Payroll Amount

07-Jul-22 Payroll 124,452.50$              

21-Jul-22 Payroll 116,706.12$              

Total Net Payroll 241,158.62$              241,158.62$                

Total Disbursements for the Period $1,397,340.33

Distribution Between Districts ~

Oakdale Irrigation District 698,670.16$                

South San Joaquin Irrigation District 698,670.17$                

Total Districts 1,397,340.33$             



 

Check 

Number

Vendor 

No Vendor Name Check Date Description Amount

129102 10815 Cal PERS System 07/26/2022 Annual Unfunded Liability 292,172.00

129104 11413 Alliant Insurance Services Inc. 07/26/2022 Insurance 210,526.31

129056 10294 FISHBIO Environmental LLC 07/21/2022 Fish Studies 128,398.48

129054 11397 K.W. Emerson, Inc. 07/13/2022 Tulloch Receation Site 87,398.11

129090 10813 ACWA Joint Powers Insurance Authority 07/20/2022 Health Benefits - June 59,153.69

129096 10813 ACWA Joint Powers Insurance Authority 07/20/2022 Health Benefits - July 59,033.99

129000 10011 ADS LLC 07/01/2022 Flowmeter Consoles (2) 55,311.50

129075 10908 McMillen Jacobs Associates 07/20/2022 FERC Part 12D Inspections & Reporting 22,847.08

129098 10815 Cal PERS System 07/20/2022 EE/ER Retirement Plan 19,169.11

129050 10815 Cal PERS System 07/11/2022 EE/ER Retirement Plan 18,186.33

129092 10815 Cal PERS System 07/20/2022 EE/ER Retirement Plan 17,979.95

129057 11343 Tim O'Laughlin, PLC 07/21/2022 Legal Fees 14,805.00

129010 11049 Hunt & Sons, Inc. 07/01/2022 Fuel 13,664.67

129006 10946 EnerSys Delaware Inc. 07/01/2022 Batteries (12) - multiple locations 10,702.22

129088 10771 W.D. Edwards Co. LLC 07/20/2022 FERC Part 12D Reports & PFMA Reviews 8,944.91

129058 11389 Paris Kincaid Wasiewski 07/21/2022 Legal Fees 8,290.00

129011 11402 ISP Supplies LLC 07/01/2022 Self Supporting Tower - Black Creek 8,001.45

129041 10611 Sierra Controls LLC 07/11/2022 Line Protectors - Abay Stilling Well 7,845.01

129055 10250 Downey Brand Attorneys LLP. 07/21/2022 Tulloch Litigaton 7,666.50

129037 10514 Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 07/11/2022 Utilities 6,535.67

129047 10778 Watermark Engineering Inc. 07/11/2022 Streamgaging 6,175.00

129040 11409 Radyn, Inc. 07/11/2022 Mt. Elizabeth Tower Surveying & Consulting 5,245.00

129067 10288 Fastenal Co. 07/20/2022 Safety ladders, mounting brackts, fall protection kit & accessories 5,070.36

129001 10067 AT&T - SBC - Pac Bell 07/01/2022 Telephone 4,543.26

129059 10067 AT&T - SBC - Pac Bell 07/20/2022 Telephone 4,524.28

129100 10812 Nationwide Retirement Solution 07/20/2022 EE Retirement Plan 3,926.85

129086 11327 Ulteig Engineers Inc. 07/20/2022 RIG Reconfiguration for CAISO 3,882.00

129052 10812 Nationwide Retirement Solution 07/11/2022 EE Retirement Plan 3,875.41

129094 10812 Nationwide Retirement Solution 07/20/2022 EE Retirement Plan 3,875.41

129071 10347 HDR Engineering Inc. 07/20/2022 Data Recovery Cultural Resource - Bearsley 3,748.16

129046 10776 Waste Mgmt of Cal Sierra Inc. 07/11/2022 Disposal 3,370.63

129036 11011 Pacific Gas & Electric 07/11/2022 Utilities 3,227.34

129103 10900 Chase Cardmember Service 07/03/2022 AED pads, meals, fuel, travel and supplies 3,152.62

129048 10813 ACWA Joint Powers Insurance Authority 07/11/2022 EE Health Benefit 3,061.32

129064 10935 Data Path, Inc. 07/20/2022 Network Support 2,708.00

129068 11333 Fedak & Brown LLP 07/20/2022 2021 Audit 2,412.00

129089 10891 Wagner & Bonsignore Consulting Civil Engineers07/20/2022 Water Rights Reporting 1,757.40

129026 10225 Debco Automotive Supply Inc. 07/11/2022 Batteries - boat, Donnells dam cottage, Goodwin, Equip. Building 1,622.05

129063 10202 Condor Earth Technologies 07/20/2022 Tulloch Day Use Site 1,600.30

129093 10811 IBEW 07/20/2022 EE Union Dues 1,400.96

129009 10333 Grainger Inc. W. W. 07/01/2022 New Pump - Tulloch 1,334.84

129019 10577 Rolyan Buoys 07/01/2022 Buoys - Tulloch 1,333.72

129099 10811 IBEW 07/20/2022 EE Union Dues 1,330.46

129083 10665 Staples 07/20/2022 Misc. office supplies 1,269.76

129028 10993 Dillon and Murphy Consulting Civil Engineers 07/11/2022 Tulloch Day Use Site Progress Meeting 1,260.00

129051 10811 IBEW 07/11/2022 EE Union Dues 1,259.95

129029 10245 Doherty Tire of Sonora Inc. 07/11/2022 Tires 1,100.74

129021 10904 Sonora Ford 07/01/2022 Repair 12-1 manifold, gasket, hose, valve, thermostat 1,088.79

129038 11274 PAR Environmental Services, Inc. 07/11/2022 Hells Half Acre Road 1,000.00

129049 10183 Cal PERS S457 Plan 07/11/2022 925.00

129091 10183 Cal PERS S457 Plan 07/20/2022 925.00

129097 10183 Cal PERS S457 Plan 07/20/2022 925.00

129084 10718 Tractor Supply Credit Plan 07/20/2022 898.17

129043 10904 Sonora Ford 07/11/2022 871.91

129035 11396 Hyrdra Pro 07/11/2022 800.00

July Checks by Amount

Project



129033 11049 Hunt & Sons, Inc. 07/11/2022 795.36

129101 10663 Standard Insurance Co. 07/20/2022 760.10

129053 10663 Standard Insurance Co. 07/11/2022 736.06

129073 10879 Lowe's 07/20/2022 709.07

129095 10663 Standard Insurance Co. 07/20/2022 695.60

129065 10225 Debco Automotive Supply Inc. 07/20/2022 641.83

129027 10227 Del Oro Water Co. Inc. 07/11/2022 624.60

129082 11005 Sonora Lumber Company 07/20/2022 606.45

129066 11048 Fastenal (Vending) 07/20/2022 509.58

129002 11093 Justin Calbert 07/01/2022 EE Travel Reimbursement 499.99

129081 10904 Sonora Ford 07/20/2022 471.75

129031 10320 General Supply Co. 07/11/2022 471.22

129077 11079 Oakdale Locksmith 07/20/2022 449.76

129008 11233 Fibrobec, Inc. 07/01/2022 412.71

129070 10333 Grainger Inc. W. W. 07/20/2022 403.24

129085 10735 Tuolumne Co. Tax Collector 07/20/2022 395.60

129034 10466 Mountain Oasis Water Systems & Btl Co LLC 07/11/2022 363.35

129032 10938 Great America Financial Svcs. 07/11/2022 358.42

129042 10641 Sonora Airco Gas & Gear 07/11/2022 328.99

129069 10319 General Plumbing Supply Co Inc. 07/20/2022 308.58

129060 10068 AT&T Corp - Data Link 07/20/2022 293.15

129079 11004 Pacific Gas & Electric 07/20/2022 286.51

129005 10225 Debco Automotive Supply Inc. 07/01/2022 256.83

129039 10535 Pitney Bowes GFS LLC 07/11/2022 237.96

129018 10709 Tidy Tech 07/01/2022 211.69

129020 10933 Smile Business Products 07/01/2022 185.47

129080 10933 Smile Business Products 07/20/2022 185.47

129045 11258 Verizon 07/11/2022 171.06

129015 10513 Pacific Gas & Elec - Non Util 07/01/2022 168.28

129078 10513 Pacific Gas & Elec - Non Util 07/20/2022 168.28

129004 10184 Clark Pest Control - Pest 07/01/2022 168.00

129076 11353 Nates Saw and Mower, LLC 07/20/2022 153.42

129061 10866 AT&T Teleconference Services 07/20/2022 144.60

129023 11086 Benefit Resource, LLC 07/11/2022 125.00

129024 10154 Calaveras Telephone Co. 07/11/2022 115.36

129025 10185 Clark Pest Control - Termite 07/11/2022 107.00

129016 11004 Pacific Gas & Electric 07/01/2022 84.76

129044 11036 UPS Supply Chain Solutions, Inc. 07/11/2022 74.47

129030 10319 General Plumbing Supply Co Inc. 07/11/2022 60.39

129014 10439 McMaster-Carr Supply Co. 07/01/2022 49.73

129022 10776 Waste Mgmt of Cal Sierra Inc. 07/01/2022 46.77

129074 10428 M C I 07/20/2022 41.56

129072 10399 JS West Propane Gas 07/20/2022 38.00

129013 10428 M C I 07/01/2022 33.29

129062 10986 Cal-Waste Recovery Systems, LLC 07/20/2022 27.64

129003 10986 Cal-Waste Recovery Systems, LLC 07/01/2022 25.49

129012 10399 JS West Propane Gas 07/01/2022 22.72

129087 10749 UPS 07/20/2022 13.35

129017 11147 Pacific Gas & Electric 07/01/2022 9.53

Report Total: 1,156,181.71$    



Tri-Dam Project

Statement 

of 

Obligations

Period Covered

August 1, 2022 to August 31, 2022



TRI-DAM PROJECT

STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

Period Covered

    One-Half Oakdale Irrigation District 853,509.63$              

    One-Half South San Joaquin Irrigation Distict 853,509.64$              

    Total Obligations  $           1,707,019.27 

CERTIFICATION

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT SOUTH SAN JOAQUIN IRRIGATION DISTRICT

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Thomas D. Orvis John Holbrook

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Ed Tobias Robert A. Holmes

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Linda Santos Dave Kamper

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Herman Doornenbal Glenn Spyksma

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Brad DeBoer Mike Weststeyn

Each of the undersigned certifies that he is President or Secretary of his respective District; 

That the amounts designated above have been properly incurred as an obligation of the Tri-Dam Project; that 

checks for payment of said amounts have been drawn on a Tri-Dam Project account at Oak Valley Community 

Bank, Sonora, California.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT SOUTH SAN JOAQUIN IRRIGATION DISTRICT

PRESIDENT, PRESIDENT,

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Thomas D. Orvis Robert A. Holmes

SECRETARY, SECRETARY,

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Scot A. Moody                            Date Peter M. Rietkerk Date

August 1, 2022 to August 31, 2022



Tri Dam Project
Statement of Obligations

Period Covered

From       To

August 1, 2022 to August 31, 2022

No. Chks. Amount

Vendor Check Register Report

(Please see attached Check Listing) 103 $1,499,991.70

Payrolls - Net Charges

Pay Date Type Payroll Amount

04-Jul-22 Payroll 97,584.58$                

18-Jul-22 Payroll 109,442.99$              

Total Net Payroll 207,027.57$              207,027.57$                

Total Disbursements for the Period $1,707,019.27

Distribution Between Districts ~

Oakdale Irrigation District 853,509.63$                

South San Joaquin Irrigation District 853,509.64$                

Total Districts 1,707,019.27$             



 

Check 

Number

Vendor 

No Vendor Name Check Date Description Amount

129182 11413 Alliant Insurance Services Inc. 08/25/2022 Insurance 679,824.75

129173 11397 K.W. Emerson, Inc. 08/12/2022 Tulloch Recreation Site 209,999.74

129190 10289 Federal Energy Reg. Commission 08/25/2022 Annual Land Use Fees 144,990.76

129106 11413 Alliant Insurance Services Inc. 08/03/2022 Insurance 53,646.84

129174 10813 ACWA Joint Powers Insurance Authority 08/24/2022 Health Benefits 48,802.48

129127 11274 PAR Environmental Services, Inc. 08/03/2022 Hells Half Acre Data Recovery 36,997.06

129154 10294 FISHBIO Environmental LLC 08/11/2022 Fish Studies 35,332.04

129153 10250 Downey Brand Attorneys LLP. 08/11/2022 Tulloch Litigaton 30,684.50

129165 11343 Tim O'Laughlin, PLC 08/11/2022 Legal Fees 25,720.00

129181 10011 ADS LLC 08/25/2022 Commissioning of mulitple flowmeter consoles 23,980.00

129139 10815 Cal PERS System 08/11/2022 EE/ER Retirement Plan 17,178.52

129176 10815 Cal PERS System 08/24/2022 EE/ER Retirement Plan 16,462.90

129162 10908 McMillen Jacobs Associates 08/11/2022 FERC Part 12D Inspections & Reporting 15,671.85

129180 11418 ABC Supply Co. Inc. 08/25/2022 Mill Creek Bridge eplacement materials 15,542.05

129186 10163 Canepa & Son's Inc. 08/25/2022 Well Pump Replacement - Tulloch Houses 9,865.00

129126 10514 Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 08/03/2022 Utilities 8,951.71

129119 11049 Hunt & Sons, Inc. 08/03/2022 Fuel 8,868.85

129194 11049 Hunt & Sons, Inc. 08/25/2022 Fuel 8,214.08

129193 10347 HDR Engineering Inc. 08/25/2022 PMF Study 6,693.00

129136 10778 Watermark Engineering Inc. 08/03/2022 Streamgaging 6,175.00

129187 10935 Data Path, Inc. 08/25/2022 Network Support 5,950.96

129158 10347 HDR Engineering Inc. 08/11/2022 Tulloch Seismicity / Donnells Analysis Coord. 5,825.47

129189 10250 Downey Brand Attorneys LLP. 08/25/2022 Tulloch Litigaton 5,585.05

129184 10067 AT&T - SBC - Pac Bell 08/25/2022 Telephone 5,361.56

129167 11389 Paris Kincaid Wasiewski 08/11/2022 Legal Fees 4,367.50

129198 10135 NewsData LLC 08/25/2022 Annual CA Energy Market Publication 4,200.00

129135 10891 Wagner & Bonsignore Consulting Civil Engineers08/03/2022 Water Rights Reporting 3,707.25

129178 10812 Nationwide Retirement Solution 08/24/2022 EE Retirement Plan 3,600.42

129141 10812 Nationwide Retirement Solution 08/11/2022 EE Retirement Plan 3,575.42

129105 10900 Chase Cardmember Service 08/03/2022 Batteries, shop supplies, small tools, fuel 3,219.59

129124 11011 Pacific Gas & Electric 08/03/2022 Utilities 3,206.70

129200 11011 Pacific Gas & Electric 08/25/2022 Utilities 3,028.90

129192 11417 Ernie and Andria Giotinis 08/25/2022 Tulloch Performance Refund 3,000.00

129206 11420 John A. Weber 08/25/2022 Tulloch Performance Refund 3,000.00

129137 10813 ACWA Joint Powers Insurance Authority 08/11/2022 EE Health Benefits 2,906.85

129113 11333 Fedak & Brown LLP 08/03/2022 2021 Audit 2,412.00

129151 10935 Data Path, Inc. 08/11/2022 Network Support 2,400.00

129120 11415 Keystone Power Services, LLC 08/03/2022 Consulting - PPA 1,600.00

129130 10577 Rolyan Buoys 08/03/2022 Buoys (6) - Tulloch 1,427.41

129188 10225 Debco Automotive Supply Inc. 08/25/2022 oil, transmission fluid, shop supplies, oil & fuel filters 1,336.52

129140 10811 IBEW 08/11/2022 EE Union Dues 1,330.46

129177 10811 IBEW 08/24/2022 EE Union Dues 1,330.46

129183 11182 Apex Safety Supply, Inc. 08/25/2022 Gas Detector Sensors 1,233.06

129129 11414 Provost & Pritchard 08/03/2022 Dam Safety Consulting 1,128.00

129171 11170 Van De Pol Petroleum 08/11/2022 1 Drum T35 Shell Turbo Oil 1,083.77

129123 10484 New Pig 08/03/2022 Absorbant pads & mats - Tulloch 1,059.58

129152 10225 Debco Automotive Supply Inc. 08/11/2022 Brakes, rotors, oil, filters air & oil, coolant 1,045.57

129164 11396 Hyrdra Pro 08/11/2022 Office Cleaning 1,000.00

129138 10183 Cal PERS S457 Plan 08/11/2022 925.00

129175 10183 Cal PERS S457 Plan 08/24/2022 925.00

129191 10319 General Plumbing Supply Co Inc. 08/25/2022 787.93

129118 10360 HOLT of California 08/03/2022 775.28

129150 10204 Consolidated Electrical Dist. 08/11/2022 734.66

129161 10879 Lowe's 08/11/2022 727.15

129142 10663 Standard Insurance Co. 08/11/2022 654.24

August Checks by Amount

Project



129179 10663 Standard Insurance Co. 08/24/2022 654.24

129111 10227 Del Oro Water Co. Inc. 08/03/2022 620.05

129146 11010 Calaveras County Water District 08/11/2022 598.50

129197 11038 Juan Martinez Catering 08/25/2022 560.50

129133 11005 Sonora Lumber Company 08/03/2022 529.14

129168 10904 Sonora Ford 08/11/2022 527.44

129156 10568 George Reed Inc. 08/11/2022 521.07

129132 10641 Sonora Airco Gas & Gear 08/03/2022 501.41

129114 11379 Foust Heat Air Refrigeration 08/03/2022 480.00

129143 10043 American Textile Supply 08/11/2022 457.35

129172 10776 Waste Mgmt of Cal Sierra Inc. 08/11/2022 456.50

129112 11083 Eric Everhart 08/03/2022 EE Reimbursement - Safety Rx Glasses 400.00

129115 10320 General Supply Co. 08/03/2022 375.41

129117 10938 Great America Financial Svcs. 08/03/2022 358.42

129110 10225 Debco Automotive Supply Inc. 08/03/2022 331.07

129185 10068 AT&T Corp - Data Link 08/25/2022 320.77

129107 10068 AT&T Corp - Data Link 08/03/2022 314.93

129207 11322 Weidmann Electrical Technology Inc. 08/25/2022 302.50

129199 11004 Pacific Gas & Electric 08/25/2022 297.17

129203 10665 Staples 08/25/2022 259.13

129159 11049 Hunt & Sons, Inc. 08/11/2022 254.33

129128 10709 Tidy Tech 08/03/2022 250.68

129147 10154 Calaveras Telephone Co. 08/11/2022 221.23

129122 10466 Mountain Oasis Water Systems & Btl Co LLC 08/03/2022 210.50

129202 10933 Smile Business Products 08/25/2022 185.47

129134 11258 Verizon 08/03/2022 172.36

129169 11005 Sonora Lumber Company 08/11/2022 171.23

129166 10513 Pacific Gas & Elec - Non Util 08/11/2022 168.28

129149 10184 Clark Pest Control - Pest 08/11/2022 168.00

129155 10320 General Supply Co. 08/11/2022 152.26

129116 10333 Grainger Inc. W. W. 08/03/2022 134.79

129204 10881 TuCARE (Tuolumne Co. Alliance for Resources & Env.08/25/2022 130.00

129170 10718 Tractor Supply Credit Plan 08/11/2022 128.65

129195 10004 LK Lehman Trucking Inc. 08/25/2022 125.48

129108 11086 Benefit Resource, LLC 08/03/2022 125.00

129157 10846 H & S Parts & Service 08/11/2022 85.08

129109 10184 Clark Pest Control - Pest 08/03/2022 80.00

129131 10632 Slakey Brothers Inc. 08/03/2022 54.10

129121 10984 Longson Document & Paper Shredding 08/03/2022 52.70

129160 10399 JS West Propane Gas 08/11/2022 37.81

129163 11353 Nates Saw and Mower, LLC 08/11/2022 34.07

129144 10866 AT&T Teleconference Services 08/11/2022 30.17

129148 10986 Cal-Waste Recovery Systems, LLC 08/11/2022 27.14

129196 10428 M C I 08/25/2022 26.17

129205 10749 UPS 08/25/2022 19.51

129125 11147 Pacific Gas & Electric 08/03/2022 10.84

129201 11147 Pacific Gas & Electric 08/25/2022 9.86

129145 10132 CA Dept of Toxic Substances Control 08/11/2022 7.50

Report Total: 1,499,991.70



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

           Date: 9/15/2022  
           Staff: Genna Modrell 

 

 
SUBJECT:  APPROVE RENEWAL OF ANTHEM MEDICAL PLAN INSURANCE COVERAGE 

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2023 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Renewal of Anthem Classic PPO Medical Insurance Coverage 

Effective January 1, 2023 
 

 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
As a member of ACWA, Tri-Dam is able to take advantage of the negotiated group rates for health 
benefit coverage through the Joint Powers Insurance Agency (JPIA). 
 
Tri-Dam’s medical coverage through ACWA JPIA will renew on January 1, 2023.  The coverage period 
is January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023.  Policy year 2023 Anthem PPO pricing reflects a 10% 
decrease compared to 2022.  The plan premiums are below: 
 
 
           Employee 
         Employee    +One    Family 
 
ACWA JPIA 2023 renewal monthly rates    $842.53 $1,685.06 $2,232.70 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Decrease of 10% compared to 2022 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: ACWA JPIA 2023 Anthem Medical Rates 
    
 

 

Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
 
VOTE:  
OID:  DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Orvis (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) Tobias (Yes/No)  
 
SSJID: Holbrook (Yes/No) Holmes (Yes/No) Kamper (Yes/No) Spyksma (Yes/No) Weststeyn 
(Yes/No) 





BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

           Date: 9/15/2022  
           Staff: Genna Modrell 

 

 
SUBJECT:  APPROVE RENEWAL OF DELTA DENTAL PLAN INSURANCE COVERAGE 

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2023 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Renewal of Delta Dental Plan Insurance Coverage Effective 

January 1, 2023 
 

 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
Tri-Dam’s dental insurance coverage (Delta Dental) through ACWA JPIA will renew on January 1, 2023.  
The coverage period is January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023.  There have been no premium 
increases since 2015.  The plan premiums are: 
 
 
 
          Employee 
        Employee    +One    Family 
 
ACWA JPIA 2023 renewal monthly rates   $31.20   $60.16    $97.81 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: No change compared to 2022 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: None 
   
 
 

 

Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
 
VOTE:  
OID:  DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Orvis (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) Tobias (Yes/No)  
 
SSJID: Holbrook (Yes/No) Holmes (Yes/No) Kamper (Yes/No) Spyksma (Yes/No) Weststeyn 
(Yes/No) 
 



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

           Date: 9/15/2022  
           Staff: Genna Modrell 

 

 
SUBJECT:  APPROVE RENEWAL OF VISION SERVICE PLAN INSURANCE COVERAGE 

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2023 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Renewal of Vision Service Plan Insurance Coverage Effective 

January 1, 2023 
 

 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
Tri-Dam’s vision insurance coverage (Vision Service Plan) through ACWA JPIA will renew on January 
1, 2023.  The coverage period is January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023.  There have been no 
premium increases since 2013.  The plan premiums are: 
 
 
 
          Employee 
        Employee    +One    Family 
 
ACWA JPIA 2023 renewal monthly rates   $28.65   $28.65    $28.65 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: No change compared to 2022 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: None 
    
 
 

 

Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
 
VOTE:  
OID:  DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Orvis (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) Tobias (Yes/No)  
 
SSJID: Holbrook (Yes/No) Holmes (Yes/No) Kamper (Yes/No) Spyksma (Yes/No) Weststeyn 
(Yes/No) 
 



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

           Date: 9/15/2022  
           Staff: Sharon Cisneros  

 

 
SUBJECT:  Tri-Dam Project Fiscal Year 2021 Audited Financial Statements 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Recommend Approval of Fiscal Year 2021 Audited Financial Statements 
 

 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
Annually, the Tri-Dam Project Financial Statements are audited by an independent, outside accounting 
firm. For Fiscal Year 2021, the accounting firm Fedak & Brown, LLP performed the audit for both Tri-
Dam Project and Tri-Dam Power Authority. 
 
A draft of the Financial Statements will be distributed separately. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Tri-Dam Project Fiscal Year 2021 Draft Audited Financial Statements 
 
 
 

 

Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
 
VOTE:  
OID:  DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Orvis (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) Tobias (Yes/No)  
 
SSJID: Holbrook (Yes/No) Holmes (Yes/No) Kamper (Yes/No) Spyksma (Yes/No) Weststeyn 
(Yes/No) 



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

           Date: 9/15/2022  
           Staff: Sharon Cisneros  

 

 
SUBJECT:  Tri-Dam Project Financial Statements for the Six Months ending June 30, 2022 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Review and take possible action to approve the Financial Statements for 

the six months ending June 30, 2022  
 

 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
As of the financial statement date of June 30, 2022, the Tri-Dam Project (TDP) cash and investments 
increased by $5.5M over the prior year due to an increase in power sales of $7.5M compared to June 
2021. This increase in sales was offset by an increase in expenses and capital projects over the prior 
year.   
 
TDP has realized 67% of its year to date budgeted operating revenues for 2022, and only utilized 40% 
of its budgeted operating expenses.  
 
Presentation is only of the year-to-date financial statements because of the volume of entries completed 
as of June 30, 2022, that represented January through June activity for investment accounts, revenue 
and expense accounts that distorted the monthly results.  
 
Further details are available in the attachments. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 2022 Year-to-Date Financial Report (unaudited) 
    
 

 

Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
 
VOTE:  
OID:  DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Orvis (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) Tobias (Yes/No)  
 
SSJID: Holbrook (Yes/No) Holmes (Yes/No) Kamper (Yes/No) Spyksma (Yes/No) Weststeyn 
(Yes/No) 



Tri-Dam Project
Statement of Net Position

(unaudited)

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
1
2 14,508,794$               8,162,667$                 
3 13,837,604                 14,681,698                 
4 5,490,278                   2,492,124                   
5 Due from Tri-Dam Power Authority 233,004                      
6 232,693                      844,570                      
7 116,449,106               107,733,632               
8 (58,321,423)                (53,349,013)                
9 8,213,938                   8,213,938                   

10 Accumulated Amortization - Intangibles (2,682,640)                  (2,492,407)                  
11 42,068                        22,105                        
12 610,452                      3,095,459                   
13 98,613,874                 89,404,771                 
14

15
16
17 115,456                      11,963                        

Unearned Revenue 75,049                        149,466                      
18 Deposits 74,000                        95,000                        
19 138,173                      169,596                      
20 1,492,409                   916,560                      
21 Net Pension Liability 459,338                      3,331,950                   
22 547,447                      2,576,399                   
23 2,901,872                   7,250,934                   
24
25
26 90,868,089                 80,796,717                 
27 Contributed Capital - Districts -                              602,963                      
28 Distributions (8,000,000)                  (5,506,000)                  
29 12,843,913                 6,260,157                   
30 95,712,002                 82,153,837                 
31
32

33 98,613,874$               89,404,771$               

Net Position - Beginning of Year

YTD Net Revenues
    Total Net Position

Total Liabilities and Net Position

Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities

Deferred Inflows - Pension Related
    Total Liabilities & Deferred Inflows

Net Position

Liabilities

Assets
Cash
Investment Securities & Money Market
Accounts Receivable

Prepaid Expenses
Capital Assets
Accumulated Depreciation
Intangible Assets

Other Assets
Deferred Outflows - Pension Related
    Total Assets & Deferred Outflows



Tri-Dam Project
Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Period Ending June 30, 2022

YTD YTD YTD Budget Budget Prior Year Prior Year Prior Year 2022

Budget Actual Variance Variance % Actual Variance Variance % Budget

1 Operating Revenues

2 Power Sales 13,491,390$    18,156,457$      4,665,067$      34.6% 10,618,416$    7,538,041$      71.0% 26,982,780$    

4 Headwater Benefit 184,426           180,000            (4,426)              -2.4% 180,000           -                   -                368,852           

5  Total Operating Revenues 13,675,816      18,336,457        4,660,641        34.1% 10,798,416      7,538,041        70% 27,351,632      

6

7 Operating Expenses

8 Salaries and Wages 1,083,774        1,092,609          8,835               0.8% 1,075,648        16,961             1.6% 2,561,648        

9 Benefits and Overhead 1,707,336        1,497,106          (210,230)          -12.3% 861,797           635,309           73.7% 2,664,671        

10 Operations 259,553           54,958              (204,595)          -78.8% 26,930             28,028             104.1% 519,105           

11 Maintenance 682,150           250,376            (431,774)          -63.3% 334,683           (84,307)            -25.2% 1,364,300        

12 General & Administrative 2,344,180        1,643,616          (700,564)          -29.9% 1,575,862        67,754             4.3% 4,688,360        

13 Depreciation & Amortization 1,063,923        1,026,488          (37,435)            -3.5% 1,054,706        (28,218)            (0)                  2,127,846        

14  Total Operating Expenses 7,140,915        5,565,153          (1,575,762)       -22.1% 4,929,626        635,527           13% 13,925,930      

15

16 Net Income From Operations 6,534,901        12,771,304        6,236,403        95.4% 5,868,790        6,902,514        117.6% 13,425,702      

17

18 Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

19 Investment Earnings 69,750             78,282              8,532               12.2% 11,826             66,456             561.9% 139,500           

20 Change in Market Value of Investments -                   (237,340)           (237,340)          0.0% (11,527)            (225,813)          1959.0% -                   

21 Water Sales 94,030             83,000              (11,030)            -11.7% 83,000             -                   0.0% 188,059           

22 Equipment Rental -                   2,400                2,400               0.0% -                   2,400               0.0% -                   

23 Gain/(Loss) on Asset Disposal -                   10,050              10,050             0.0% 1,150               8,900               773.9% -                   

24 Reimbursements 105,667           96,591              (9,076)              -8.6% 106,797           (10,206)            -9.6% 211,333           

25 Other Nonoperating Revenue 40,443             39,626              (817)                 -2.0% 200,121           (160,495)          (1)                  80,886             

26  Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 309,889           72,609              (237,280)          -76.6% 391,367           (318,758)          -81% 619,778           

27

28 Net Revenues 6,844,790$      12,843,913$      5,999,123$      1$                  6,260,157$      6,583,756$      105.2% 14,045,480$    

29

31 YTD YTD YTD Budget 2022

32 Memo: Budget Actual Variance Budget

33 Capital Expenditures 1,368,413$      242,732$           (1,125,681)$     47,632$           2,736,825$      

34 Tulloch Day Use Site 768,663$         1,051,555$        282,893$         51,451$           1,537,325$      

35 Major Repairs - Hells Half Acre & 4700 Roads 110,000$         -$                  (110,000)$        220,000$         

36 Major Repairs - Tulloch Unit 3 Access Rd 125,000$         -$                  (125,000)$        250,000$         

Net Revenue after Capital Expenditures 11,549,626$      6,161,074$      

30 Transfer from Reserves 2,150,000$      2,150,000$        2,150,000$      



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

           Date: September 15, 2022 
           Staff: Sharon Cisneros  

 

 
SUBJECT:  Review and Take Possible Action to Approve the Resolution 2022-16 Authorizing 

Staff to Make the Tri-Dam Project Semi-Annual Distribution 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Recommend approval of Resolution TDP 2022-16 authorizing Staff to 

make the Semi-Annual Distribution to Oakdale Irrigation District and 
South San Joaquin Irrigation District  

 

 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
At the Tri-Dam Project Joint Board of Directors meeting held on February 17, 2022, the Joint Board 
adopted Tri-Dam Project Resolution 2022-04, to revise the Reserve funds by combining the reserve 
funds into one account and setting the fully funded amount at $15 million. 
 
Available funds were defined as all cash and investments held by Tri-Dam, less Reserve funds plus 
day-to-day operating cash requirements of $2.0 million. 
  
Resolution 2022-04 further provided that semi-annually, in January and July, available funds will first 
be used to replenish the Reserve Fund in an amount equal to the lesser of $750,000, or the amount 
which will bring the total reserves to $15 million. A Distribution will be made to the Districts from all 
remaining Available Funds in equal shares. 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: $11,700,000 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Tri-Dam Project 2022 Distribution Worksheet 

Tri-Dam Project Resolution TDP 2022-16  
 
 
 

 

Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
 
VOTE:  
OID:  DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Orvis (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) Tobias (Yes/No)  
 
SSJID: Holbrook (Yes/No) Holmes (Yes/No) Kamper (Yes/No) Spyksma (Yes/No) Weststeyn 
(Yes/No) 



Tri-Dam Project
September 2022 Distribution

1 Cash and Investments 6/30/2022 12/31/2021

2 Cash in Bank (OVCB) 14,452,468   10,632,126   

3 LAIF -                39,128          

4 Reserves (market value) 13,837,604   15,419,945   

5 Total Cash & Investments 28,290,072   26,091,199   

6

7 Less:

8 Reserves (market value) (13,837,604)  (15,419,945)  

9 Day-to-Day Operating Cash (2,000,000)    (2,000,000)    

10 (15,837,604)  (17,419,945)  

11

12 Available Funds 12,452,468   8,671,254     

13 Less Repayment to Maintenance Reserve (750,000)       (750,000)       

14 Total District Distribution 11,702,468   7,921,254     

15

16 Distribution per District (rounded) 5,850,000     4,000,000     

17

18

19 Total Distributions - Project

20 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

21 15,918,176      32,773,000      21,119,000       18,252,000      25,142,000      10,958,000      

22 Total Distributions - Authority

23 -                   1,384,000        7,383,000         4,868,000        6,439,000        2,504,000        

24 Combined Distributions

25 15,918,176      34,157,000      28,502,000       23,120,000      31,581,000      13,462,000      



TRI-DAM PROJECT 
RESOLUTION NO. TDP 2022-16 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SEMI-ANNUAL FUND DISTRIBUTIONS   
 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Oakdale Irrigation District and the 

South San Joaquin Irrigation District (“Joint Boards” and “Districts”) meeting as the Joint 
Boards of Directors of the Tri-Dam Project (Project) adopt this Resolution. 
 

WHEREAS, the Joint Boards have adopted Tri-Dam Project Resolution 2022-04, dated 
February 17, 2022 rescinding and superseding all previous resolutions and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Joint Boards have received and reviewed written information pertaining 

the amount of current financial reserves of Tri-Dam Project and, 

WHEREAS, the Joint Boards finds that the requirements of Resolution 2022-04 have 

been met and, 

 WHEREAS, the Joint Boards finds that funds are being held by Tri-Dam Project that are 

in excess of the Project’s current and near-term business needs and, 

 WHEREAS, the Joint Boards finds that such excess funds may be more beneficially 

applied to District needs and requirements. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Joint Boards of Directors hereby finds, determines, declares, orders, 
and resolves as follows: 
 

1. That the foregoing recitals are true and correct and incorporates them by this reference. 
 

2. Determines that funds in the total amount of $11,700,000 are available for distribution to 
the Districts; 
 

3. Directs that such distribution shall be made no later than September 30, 2022. 
 

4. Directs the Tri-Dam Project Interim General Manager and Interim Finance Manager to 
make such distribution, one-half to each District ($5,850,000 each) in a time and manner 
as is reasonably practical pursuant to the terms of this Resolution. 

 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Joint Board of Directors of the OAKDALE IRRIGATION 
DISTRICT and of the SOUTH SAN JOAQUIN IRRIGATION DISTRICT for the TRI-DAM 
PROJECT this 15th day of September, 2022, by the following vote: 
 



 
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT               SOUTH SAN JOAQUIN IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

 
AYES:    

 

NOES:  

 

ABSENT:  

 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT               SOUTH SAN JOAQUIN IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

 

________________________          _______________________________ 

Tom D. Orvis, President            Robert A. Holmes, President 

 

 

_________________________           _______________________________ 

Scot A. Moody, Secretary                     Peter M. Rietkerk, Secretary 















































































































BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

            Date: 9/15/2022 
            Staff: Jeff Shields  

 

 
SUBJECT:  Tri-Dam Project / PG&E Islanding Letter Agreement 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize Interim General Manager to execute agreement 
 

 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:  
 
PG&E has relied on Tri-Dam generation historically to serve local needs during scheduled or 
emergency outages for short durations (1-10 days). Jarom had worked with PG&E and SVP to put 
together a Letter Agreement that serves all parties needs. I received the attached “final” Letter 
Agreement and confirmed with SVP that they are okay with the language. Generally, Tri-Dam will 
receive financial benefit in the form of cost recovery as well as benefits of receiving power at our 
facilities in the local area during an outage. SVP will receive lost revenue in the form of market-based 
prices for energy not available to them during an Islanding event. 
 
I have reviewed this agreement and discussed it with PG&E and SVP. I recommend the Board approve 
this agreement.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Net positive economic impact that provides $2,500 per event for costs associated 
with our staff time and costs.  $110 per hour per employee per occurrence and $185 per hour due to 
lost generation. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Islanding Letter Agreement 
 

 

Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
 
VOTE:  
OID:  DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Orvis (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) Tobias (Yes/No)  
 
SSJID: Holbrook (Yes/No) Holmes (Yes/No) Kamper (Yes/No) Spyksma (Yes/No) Weststeyn 
(Yes/No) 



         Martin Wyspianski 
Vice President, Electric Engineering, Asset & Regulatory 
300 Lakeside Drive 
Oakland, CA  94612 
Phone: 415.265.2902 
Email: martin.wyspianski@pge.com 

 

September 7, 2022 
 
 
Jeff Shields 
Interim General Manager 
Tri-Dam Project 
31885 Old Strawberry Rd. 
Strawberry, CA 95375 

 
 

 

 
Dear Mr. Shields, 

Pacific Gas and Electric Company (“PG&E”) and the Tri-Dam Project (“Tri-Dam”) are entering 
into this Letter Agreement on October ___, 2022 (“Agreement”).  PG&E and Tri-Dam, 
sometimes referred to individually as a “Party” or referred to collectively as the “Parties”, agree 
to the terms and conditions set forth below to facilitate the separation of certain PG&E load 
from the California Independent System Operator Corporation (“CAISO”) operated electrical 
grid (“Grid”) during 2022-2023 to complete replacement of PG&E poles, switches, and 
structures on the transmission system. 

1. PG&E, Tri-Dam, and the CAISO shall cooperate to coordinate the switching arrangement 
required to isolate the Islanding Area, as agreed upon by the Parties and CAISO, by 
opening the required switch consistent with Good Utility Practice so that no power is 
transferred from the CAISO Grid to the Islanding Area. 

2. This Letter Agreement shall be in effect from October 1, 2022 to December 31, 2023, or 
any other hours and dates agreed to by the Parties’ respective operating 
representatives. The (“Islanding Period”) shall be defined as the period during which the 
PG&E load is separated from the CAISO Controlled Grid to support PG&E maintenance 
activities, and Donnells or other Tri-Dam facilities supply power to such load.  At all 
times during the Islanding Period, Tri-Dam’s Donnells Power Plant and PG&E load in the 
Islanding Area will operate as an island such that any connection to the CAISO Grid is 
open and the Donnells Power Plant is the sole supplier of electric energy and capacity to 
the islanding area. 

3. Tri-Dam’s Beardsley Power Plant will be made available to support the Islanding Area 
when loading permits its use.  Because there are minimum flow requirements on 
Beardsley, PG&E will use Beardsley in combination with Donnells when possible.  Any 
generation from Beardsley during the Islanding Period will be totaled with load served 
by Donnells Power Plant.  In conditions during the Islanding Period that don’t support 
both generators, Donnells will be used, and Tri-Dam will be compensated for the 
minimum flows required through Beardsley at a rate of $185/hr of islanding due to the 
loss of generation at Beardsley in a dry year with flow requirements of 50 cfs. 



a. PG&E agrees to pay Tri-Dam hourly for generation of power during the Islanding 
Period as follows:  

i. Generation provided will be paid hourly based upon the hourly resource 
specific Locational Marginal Price (LMP). 

ii. For the hours during the Islanding Period the Locational Marginal Price 
(LMP) of each resource is less than $80/MWh, then the calculation will be 
$96/MWh multiplied by the actual MWh of generation sold to PG&E 
during the islanding events. 

iii. For the hours during the Islanding Period that the Locational Marginal 
Price (LMP) of each resource is greater than $80/MWh and less than 
$1,000/MWH, then the calculation will be $96/MWh plus the positive 
difference of the LMP minus $80/MWh multiplied by the actual MWh of 
generation sold to PG&E. 

iv. For the hours during the Islanding Period that the Locational Marginal 
Price (LMP) of each resource is greater than $1,000/MWh, then the 
calculation will be $1,000/MWh multiplied by the actual MWh of 
generation sold to PG&E.  

v. Any Islanding Period longer than two (2) days, 10% will be added to the 
LMP.  

b. $110/hour for one employee to staff the Donnells Power Plant during the 
requested outage time as submitted and approved by the CAISO prior to the 
outage start with two hours added on each end of the outage time to account 
for the need for a Tri-Dam employee to be there before and after the outage to 
perform start/stop actions. 

c. A one-time charge of $2,500 to recover the costs associated with doing relay 
protection setting changes required for the islanding.  

 

Tri-Dam to issue the invoice for the power generated and used to serve PG&E load during the 
Islanding Period with supporting documentation for PG&E’s review and payment. 

 

Please return one fully executed original of this Agreement to me. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Martin Wyspianski 

Vice President, Electric Engineering, Asset & Regulatory 
 

 

 



Accepted and Agreed to on Behalf of an Authorized Representative of Tri-Dam Project: 

 

__________________________________________________________ 

 

Name: (Printed):  ______________________________________ 

Title:   ______________________________________ 

Date:   ______________________________________ 

 



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

            Date: 9/15/22 
            Staff: Jeff Shields 

Chris Tuggle 
 

 
SUBJECT:  Re-roof Donnells Powerhouse and Cottage 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve an amendment to the budget to include the reroofing of both 

the Donnells Powerhouse and the Cottage, also at the Powerhouse, and 
authorize the General Manager to solicit competitive bids and award to 
the lowest qualifying bidder. 

 

 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
The Donnells Powerhouse and Cottage reroofing was originally approved by the Board in the 2022 
Budget. Water is leaking into both the powerhouse and the cottage during rain and snow events and 
leaks are endangering the generator and the power equipment. The cabin which houses an employee 
in the event we have a communication failure and has also been used by contractors doing work on 
the powerhouse has leaks that will continue to damage the interior. It makes sense to have a roofing 
company repair both facilities while at the location. I would like to have the work done prior to this winter.  
 
Attached is a single bid that is valid to October 5th. If the Board approves the budget amendment, you 
have the ability to authorize the General Manager to solicit competitive bids and award the job to the 
lowest responsible bidder.         
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: $136,410.00 

 
 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Quote provided by Summit Roofing Services. 
 
 
 

 

Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________ Second by: ______________________________ 
 
 
VOTE:  
OID:  DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Orvis (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) Tobias (Yes/No)  
 
SSJID: Holbrook (Yes/No) Holmes (Yes/No) Kamper (Yes/No) Spyksma (Yes/No) Weststeyn 
(Yes/No) 



 

Modern Technology. Old Fashioned Values 705 Industrial Park Drive Fax 209.825.3023 

 Manteca, CA 95337-6115 www.sroofs.com 

 888.825.3042 CA License #791177

 209.825.3042 NV License #0072823 

 

 
August 2, 2022 
 
 
Mr. Daniel Hogue  
Tri-Dam Project / Tri-Dam Power Authority 
P.O. Box 1158 
Pinecrest, Ca 95364 
 
RE:  Donnells Power House  
     
Dear Mr. Hogue,  
 
We are pleased to present this proposal to you for the installation of a new Sarnafil 60-Mil FB Single 
Ply Roof System at the referenced location. 
 
The total cost of all labor, materials, equipment, insurance and supervision is as follows in the scope 
of work, 
 
Roof areas, Main Power House and The Cottage 
 

1. Prepare the existing roof system to accept the new Sarnafil Single Ply Roof System, remove 
the debris from the site and as non-asbestos containing roofing materials. 

2. On the power house roof areas; starting at the low points of the roof install the single ply roof 
membrane in shingle fashion over lapping each sheet and set into an application of Sarnacol 
OM Feltback Membrane Adhesive. Hot air weld each sheet together in the head and end 
laps.  

3. On the cottage roof; install a cover board and the single ply membrane mechanically 
attached over the existing shingle roof. 

4. Install one layer of flashing membrane on all parapet walls, vertical curbs and roof to wall 
curbs. Set the flashing membrane into bonding adhesive and terminate the top of the flashing 
membrane with a termination bar and sealant 

5. On all perimeter edges install clad metal edge and seal the roof flange with a stripping 
membrane hot air welded to the field membrane.  

6. At all parapet walls over the flashing membrane install 22-gauge sheet metal lock strip and a 
4” face Sarnaclad metal edging mechanically. Install a 6-inch stripping membrane to seal the 
metal flange of the metal to the flashing membrane.  

7. Install new boot flashings at all roof projections. 
8. Install membrane flashing sheets at all roof drains.  
9. Provide a contractor’s 5-year and Sarnafil’s 20-year warranty system warranty. 

 
Roof Replacement Cost, $136,410.00 
 



 

Modern Technology. Old Fashioned Values 705 Industrial Park Drive Fax 209.825.3023 

 Manteca, CA 95337-6115 www.sroofs.com 

 888.825.3042 CA License #791177 

 209.825.3042 NV License #0072823 

 

Unit Cost  
 
a. Labor:     $132.00 per man per hour  
b. Materials:     Cost plus 25% 
c. Truck and Equipment Fee:  $285.00 per day 
d. Walk Way Mats:    $47.50 per lineal foot  

 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or if we can be of further service to you. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Tom Asbury  
 
Tom Asbury 
President 
 
** Due to the volatile raw products, asphalt, metal markets, wood, general building products, 
manufacturing and supply trail this proposal is subject to change after October 5, 2022. 



INTERIM GENERAL MANAGER BOARD REPORT 
Jeff Shields 

September 15, 2022 

 

1. I am meeting today (Sept. 9th) at Tulloch Reservoir Dam with Charlie Evans, President 

of Cal Crush to inspect the sunken barge that we have to remove when the reservoir 

is lowered to inspect the gates.  The barge was purchased as part of a legal settlement 

for $1 in 2017 and moved to Tri-Dam property on south shore by the dam.  When the 

reservoir was refilled following the last gate inspection, the barge took on water and 

was submerged. Today it rests approximately 20 feet below the 506 ft. elevation.  

FERC has required we remove the 50’ X 36’ X 4’ (100 ton) barge. 

 

2. The representative that is managing the GM recruitment at Ralph Anderson & 

Associates has been at a conference and unavailable for an update. I need to get the 

agenda packet completed and mailed this morning so I will have a full status report 

for the Board at the meeting. 

 

3. Z Global continues the initiative to bid the Power Purchase Agreement. Together we 

have established a list of approximately 95 entities to solicit their interest. I am 

providing an early draft of the bid terms and we can discuss those at the Board 

meeting. Please realize these terms are being discussed internally and will change in 

the next week. Some of Z Global’s numbers are not correct and some of the terms are 

still not settled.  

 

4. TuCARE’s Annual Natural Resources Tour is scheduled for Thursday, October 6th. 

They asked that I meet a group of about 50 local agency, business and political officials 

to initiate their day at 8:30 AM at Tulloch Dam. Tri-Dam is a member of TuCARE and 

any Board member or staff that want to attend is certainly welcome. I do not plan to 

attend the entire day but will speak to them at Tulloch and provide a tour.  

 

5. I am attaching the 2022/2023 Tulloch Reservoir Draw Down schedule we received 

yesterday from the Bureau. I mentioned earlier that I am meeting this afternoon with 

Cal Crush to look at options for removing the sunken barge. I do not believe we will 

be able to get this done when the lake is at the 498’ level but Cal Crush may have some 

suggestions to get that done.  

 

6. Susan and I met with the USFS at Pinecrest and were able to expedite the closure 

permit necessary to repair the Mill Creek Bridge. That closure is approved from 

September 6th - 23rd. Chris will update the Board on the status of the repairs at the 

meeting.  

























1 
 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE MANAGER BOARD REPORT 
Chris Tuggle 

September 15, 2022 
 
 
OPERATIONS: 

Reservoir Data (A/F): 

FACILITY     STORAGE   MONTH CHANGE 

Donnells   47,426 (12,004) 
Beardsley   86,163   8,213 
Tulloch   64,344   (1,192) 
New Melones 640,705     (70,443) 

 

Outages: 

Plant   Dates   Duration  Cause 

    

Operations Report: 

New Melones Inflows: 

Total inflows for water year 21/22 as of August 30:  569,231 A/F. 

District Usage: 

Total District usage for the water year 21/22 as of August 30:  416,625 A/F. 

Precipitation: 

Total precipitation for the month of August was .29 inches.  

Other Activities: 

 TDP met with PG&E at the Strawberry Office for an Outage Coordination Meeting. 
 The Operations Department conducted the External Penstock Inspection for 

Donnells. 
 TDP attended the PG&E monthly water coordination meeting. 
 PFMA review with McMillan Jacobs and Dam Safety Engineer Wayne Edwards. 
 Operations had a meeting with McMillan Jacobs in regards to our Ten-Year Radial 

Gate Inspection. 
 TDP had safety-training week, which covered CPR, AED, Fire Extinguishers, and the 

Annual Hearing Test. 
 Operators conducted a tour of the Tulloch Dam and Powerhouse. 

 
   



2 
 

 

MAINTENANCE: 

Donnell: 

1. Equipment in service. 

Beardsley: 

1. Equipment in service. 

Sandbar: 

1. Equipment in service. 
Tulloch: 

1. Equipment in service. 

Misc.: 

 Ray's Radio was onsite to evaluate our microwave radio equipment. 
 Accusonic was onsite to commission the upgraded flow meters. 
 Contractors (Sierra Hardwood, Abbey Carpet & McCurley's National Flooring) were 

onsite to quote new flooring for the General Manager's house.  
 Stephens Mechanical was onsite for the Beardsley PRV kick-off meeting. 
 Installed and started monitoring the Tulloch Day Use Camera. 



BEARDSLEY PRECIPITATION

YEAR : JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE TOTAL
---------------- --------- --------- ------------ ------------ ------------- ----------- ---------- -------------- ---------- --------- ------------ ---------- ---------------

1958-59 : 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.40 1.39 1.40 1.04 0.00 11.23
1959-60 : 0.00 0.03 3.09 0.00 0.00 1.92 5.74 8.38 4.68 2.45 0.35 0.00 26.64
1960-61 : 0.05 0.00 0.44 0.63 5.33 2.43 1.60 3.04 4.96 1.49 1.84 0.29 22.10
1961-62 : 0.21 1.12 0.77 0.70 3.39 2.98 2.04 15.32 6.13 1.12 1.04 0.02 34.84
1962-63 : 0.30 0.16 0.35 2.98 1.05 2.66 5.91 8.37 6.08 8.24 3.70 0.74 40.54
1963-64 : 0.00 0.44 0.59 2.63 7.81 0.81 5.84 0.21 3.02 2.01 2.44 1.64 27.44
1964-65 : 0.00 0.00 0.34 2.08 7.40 17.93 5.90 1.34 2.44 5.27 0.32 0.29 43.31
1965-66 : 0.00 1.47 0.60 0.47 12.38 4.59 1.68 2.33 1.00 2.39 0.43 0.10 27.44
1966-67 : 0.13 0.00 0.28 0.00 7.55 8.48 8.77 0.67 10.02 10.25 2.04 1.05 49.24
1967-68 : 0.00 0.39 0.90 0.54 2.47 3.35 4.94 4.81 3.48 0.73 1.44 0.02 23.07
1968-69 : 0.10 0.65 0.00 2.12 6.22 8.28 19.45 8.35 1.88 3.39 0.21 0.39 51.04
1969-70 : 0.00 0.00 0.55 3.41 2.98 6.46 17.06 3.11 3.43 2.50 0.00 3.17 42.67
1970-71 : 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.91 10.71 8.44 2.83 1.16 4.87 1.49 1.80 0.77 32.98
1971-72 : 0.00 0.02 0.29 1.22 6.22 10.31 2.39 2.78 1.01 4.03 0.10 1.62 29.99
1972-73 : 0.00 0.58 0.17 1.85 6.27 5.57 12.08 12.06 5.31 1.11 0.72 0.74 46.46
1973-74 : 0.05 0.18 0.07 3.65 9.88 9.10 5.08 1.84 8.18 5.15 0.02 0.07 43.27
1974-75 : 2.57 0.10 0.00 2.82 2.38 4.95 4.25 10.16 9.90 5.41 0.84 0.63 44.01
1975-76 : 0.03 2.02 0.15 6.75 2.04 0.74 0.49 3.03 2.66 2.42 0.91 0.05 21.29
1976-77 : 0.10 2.43 1.00 0.93 1.54 0.24 2.50 2.68 2.06 0.25 4.65 0.38 18.76 RECORD LOW
1977-78 : 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.24 4.76 9.72 10.85 8.31 8.67 7.97 0.19 0.23 51.52
1978-79 : 0.08 0.00 3.98 0.07 3.17 4.43 8.45 7.60 6.05 1.86 2.88 0.02 38.59
1979-80 : 0.17 0.03 0.00 4.66 4.63 5.22 14.62 13.03 3.61 3.09 4.33 0.77 54.16
1980-81 : 0.43 0.02 0.03 0.71 0.58 3.04 8.05 2.69 6.26 1.67 1.42 0.00 24.90
1981-82 : 0.06 0.00 0.15 5.27 8.76 8.39 6.08 8.08 11.23 8.19 0.12 1.34 57.67
1982-83 : 0.03 0.02 4.02 8.78 11.30 7.32 10.83 14.34 12.86 6.29 0.74 0.12 76.65 RECORD HIGH
1983-84 : 0.01 0.09 3.86 1.35 16.44 12.75 0.27 5.51 3.56 2.70 0.84 1.31 48.69
1984-85 : 0.00 0.05 0.73 3.97 10.28 2.58 1.52 3.13 5.84 0.86 0.07 0.28 29.31
1985-86 : 0.30 0.12 2.64 3.09 7.71 4.52 4.70 21.98 8.43 2.37 1.58 0.00 57.44
1986-87 : 0.02 0.00 2.18 0.00 0.49 0.73 3.42 5.89 5.21 0.79 1.63 0.15 20.51
1987-88 : 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.19 2.22 5.79 5.42 0.88 0.73 3.15 1.66 0.79 22.83
1988-89 : 0.00 0.00 0.05 0.07 6.96 4.29 1.45 2.73 10.08 1.41 0.74 0.02 27.80
1989-90 : 0.00 0.33 3.28 4.30 3.02 0.00 4.75 3.40 2.75 1.66 3.46 0.21 27.16  
1990-91 : 0.00 0.11 0.59 0.41 1.62 1.30 0.40 1.79 16.08 1.74 2.54 1.54 28.12
1991-92 : 0.17 0.10 0.32 5.54 2.32 3.10 1.97 7.68 4.58 0.45 0.45 1.66 28.34
1992-93 : 3.26 0.35 0.00 3.05 0.44 9.61 12.19 8.74 6.29 2.07 1.24 2.43 49.67
1993-94 : 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.25 2.11 1.97 2.93 7.08 0.86 3.71 2.22 0.00 22.13  
1994-95 : 0.00 0.00 0.77 2.82 7.92 3.68 18.32 1.14 18.76 6.98 6.72 1.02 68.13
1995-96 : 0.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.35 9.13 10.32 11.17 6.81 3.94 5.51 1.24 48.52
1996-97 : 0.05 0.01 0.23 2.55 7.14 16.19 18.16 0.80 0.53 0.82 0.51 1.24 48.23
1997-98 : 0.17 0.00 0.33 1.39 4.99 3.70 12.86 16.30 6.69 4.94 6.46 1.35 59.18  
1998-99 : 0.00 0.00 2.84 0.49 5.12 3.13 8.93 9.71 2.63 3.03 1.28 1.03 38.19  
1999-00 : 0.00 0.13 0.18 1.05 3.51 0.51 11.68 14.13 2.58 3.70 2.72 1.06 41.25
2000-01 : 0.00 0.07 0.96 3.17 1.01 1.59 4.69 4.70 3.08 5.39 0.00 0.07 24.73
2001-02 : 0.02 0.00 0.60 1.17 6.97 9.75 2.56 2.13 6.88 2.29 2.02 0.00 34.39
2002-03 : 0.00 0.00 0.09 0.00 7.42 11.17 1.12 3.50 3.81 9.36 2.69 0.00 39.16
2003-04 : 0.09 1.32 0.06 0.00 2.88 9.97 2.79 8.52 1.07 0.17 0.55 0.02 27.44
2004-05 : 0.02 0.00 0.19 7.66 2.93 6.67 10.52 6.95 9.35 3.35 5.76 0.80 54.20
2005-06 : 0.00 0.11 0.71 1.70 3.34 17.72 7.75 5.26 10.14 10.55 1.97 0.10 59.35
2006-07 : 0.08 0.00 0.01 1.53 3.56 5.25 2.08 8.70 1.30 2.61 1.33 0.10 26.55
2007-08 : 0.01 0.17 0.34 1.02 0.95 5.01 10.15 6.69 0.87 0.26 2.85 0.00 28.32
2008-09 : 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.65 6.17 5.08 5.88 6.98 6.78 1.97 3.37 0.79 38.67
2009-10 : 0.00 0.10 0.00 4.37 1.31 5.89 7.97 5.86 4.92 6.66 3.65 0.06 40.79
2010-11 : 0.00 0.00 0.00 8.67 7.15 14.21 2.15 5.76 15.22 1.94 2.94 3.21 61.25
2011-12 : 0.00 0.00 1.56 3.13 1.77 0.00 6.25 1.62 5.96 4.76 0.37 0.92 26.34
2012-13 : 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.27 5.78 12.56 0.64 0.93 3.26 1.11 1.48 0.80 27.83
2013-14 : 0.00 0.00 0.72 0.56 1.80 1.22 1.59 9.23 6.17 3.43 0.98 0.05 25.75
2014-15 : 0.52 0.03 1.03 0.15 3.72 7.25 0.13 4.49 0.43 3.08 2.75 0.80 24.38
2015-16 : 0.39 0.00 0.11 2.26 5.36 9.74 9.53 1.74 9.19 3.13 1.82 0.34 43.61
2016-17 : 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.26 3.19 8.30 22.25 20.47 5.49 8.06 0.59 0.46 76.07
2017-18 : 0.00 0.09 1.44 0.50 7.34 0.42 5.20 0.76 14.50 3.70 1.02 0.00 34.97
2018-19 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.92 8.21 3.07 9.84 15.37 8.97 2.07 7.43 0.46 57.34
2019-20 0.00 0.00 0.63 0.00 1.39 10.58 2.09 0.08 7.50 3.87 3.09 0.33 29.56
2020-21 0.00 0.23 0.10 0.00 2.38 3.40 7.28 2.44 2.83 1.31 0.18 0.00 20.15
2021-22 0.09 0.00 0.18 7.51 0.95 13.37 0.04 0.36 0.96 4.14 0.39 0.31 28.30
2022-23 0.00 0.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.29 Current Year

Average 0.15 0.21 0.70 2.23 4.64 5.98 6.39 6.07 5.64 3.38 1.87 0.62 37.87
2021-22 +/- (0.15) 0.08 (0.70) (2.23) (4.64) (5.98) (6.39) (6.07) (5.64) (3.38) (1.87) (0.62) (37.58)

 
ANNUAL AVERAGE 37.87

INCHES +/- ANNUAL AVERAGE (37.58)
1-Sep-22

PERCENT OF ANNUAL AVERAGE 1%
Updated as of



0.00

10.00

20.00

30.00

40.00

50.00

60.00

70.00

80.00

90.00

19
58

-5
9

19
59

-6
0

19
60

-6
1

19
61

-6
2

19
62

-6
3

19
63

-6
4

19
64

-6
5

19
65

-6
6

19
66

-6
7

19
67

-6
8

19
68

-6
9

19
69

-7
0

19
70

-7
1

19
71

-7
2

19
72

-7
3

19
73

-7
4

19
74

-7
5

19
75

-7
6

19
76

-7
7

19
77

-7
8

19
78

-7
9

19
79

-8
0

19
80

-8
1

19
81

-8
2

19
82

-8
3

19
83

-8
4

19
84

-8
5

19
85

-8
6

19
86

-8
7

19
87

-8
8

19
88

-8
9

19
89

-9
0

19
90

-9
1

19
91

-9
2

19
92

-9
3

19
93

-9
4

19
94

-9
5

19
95

-9
6

19
96

-9
7

19
97

-9
8

19
98

-9
9

19
99

-0
0

20
00

-0
1

20
01

-0
2

20
02

-0
3

20
03

-0
4

20
04

-0
5

20
05

-0
6

20
06

-0
7

20
07

-0
8

20
08

-0
9

20
09

-1
0

20
10

-1
1

20
11

-1
2

20
12

-1
3

20
13

-1
4

20
14

-1
5

20
15

-1
6

20
16

-1
7

20
17

-1
8

20
18

-1
9

20
19

-2
0

20
20

-2
1

20
21

-2
2

20
22

-2
3

Historical Rain VS Average

TOTAL AVERAGE



REGULATORY AFFAIRS BOARD REPORT 
Susan Larson 

September 15, 2022 
 

 
 
FERC Compliance 
 

 Work continues at the Day Use Recreation Site; however, the project is not complete.  The 
contractor is working on scheduling of the “punch list” of correction items provided in late 
August.  The security system is now operational, with one camera while the second has been 
ordered and will be installed on September 7, 2022.  Installation of the offsite water line is not 
complete, nor have the required County inspections been requested nor performed. 

 

 Hells Half Acre.  Given that the cultural resources work is nearing completion, Staff is 
proceeding to have the final road work design prepared by P&P Engineering (Action Item for 
today’s Board Meeting).   

 

 Tulloch Spillway Road.  Now that the prior matters have been resolved, we are proceeding with 
the design work needed to begin the repair of the roadway.  (Action Item for today’s Board 
Meeting). 

 

 Annual Cultural Resources Monitoring.   Tri-Dam’s FERC licenses for Donnells/Beardsley and 
Tulloch contain requirements for annual monitoring of sites at Beardsley and Tulloch pursuant 
to the adopted HPMP (Historic Properties Management Plan).  PAR Environmental is 
scheduling and performing those inspections this month and next, to meet license timing 
requirements. 

 

 Coordination of license requirements for all licenses for inspection provisions within the D2SI 
(San Francisco Regional Office), and DHAC (Washington DC), to ensure proper coordination of 
pending requirements for gate inspections, shoreline erosion and other dam safety follow up, 
including Part 12 D follow up. 

 

 
Permit and Other Assignments 
 

 Work on permits, site reviews and compliance questions for various properties at Tulloch.  
Respond to daily inquiries from the public, and coordination with Calaveras and 
Tuolumne Marine Safety Units.  Permits, inspections and file documentation. 

 Tulloch compliance matters, as required, using the data compiled during the shoreline 
audit. 

 Working on pending litigation matters, as required. 



Tri-Dam Project

Generation & Revenue Report 

2022

Donnells Beardsley Tulloch Project Total
Average 

Generation  

(1958-2018)

2022 Net 

Generation 

(kWh)

Avoided 

Generation 

(kWh)

2022   

Energy 

Revenue

Average 

Generation  

(1958-2018)

2022 Net 

Generation 

(kWh)

2022   

Energy 

Revenue

Average 

Generation  

(1958-2018)

2022 Net 

Generation 

(kWh)

2022   

Energy 

Revenue

Average 

Generation  

(1958-2018)

2022 Net 

Generation 

(kWh)

2022   

Energy 

Revenue
JAN 17,389,989  22,065,962     -                  $1,765,277 3,150,048 6,346,979       $507,758 4,271,885 1,105,497       $88,440 24,811,922     29,518,438     $2,361,475
FEB 17,229,608  20,356,500     -                  $1,628,520 2,927,753 4,160,159       $332,813 5,024,913 4,542,830       $363,426 25,182,274     29,059,489     $2,324,759
MAR 23,070,659  21,199,698     -                  $1,695,976 3,584,274 712,429          $56,994 7,580,691 10,794,631     $863,570 34,235,623     32,706,757     $2,616,541
APR 31,686,865  25,641,336     -                  $2,051,307 4,717,464 6,239,458       $499,157 10,811,027 9,993,391       $799,471 47,215,356     41,874,184     $3,349,935

MAY 41,216,149  23,096,110     -                  $1,847,689 5,799,593 3,884,238       $310,739 12,131,040 14,298,993     $1,143,919 59,146,782     41,279,340     $3,302,347
JUN 42,555,036  30,939,288     -                  $2,475,143 6,336,073 6,160,441       $492,835 12,084,818 15,417,779     $1,233,422 60,975,928     52,517,508     $4,201,401
JUL 36,444,466  12,729,928     -                  $1,018,394 6,629,514 4,981,005       $398,480 12,609,174 12,915,743     $1,033,259 55,683,154     30,626,677     $2,450,134
AUG 27,568,740  17,237,748     -                  $1,379,020 6,269,748 1,317,251       $105,380 11,868,293 11,530,563     $922,445 45,706,781     30,085,561     $2,406,845
SEP 20,111,167  -                  $0 5,223,523 $0 8,577,620 $0 33,912,310     -                  $0
OCT 12,743,535  -                  $0 3,752,220 $0 4,664,124 $0 21,159,879     -                  $0
NOV 12,042,987  -                  $0 2,794,775 $0 2,487,256 $0 17,325,019     -                  $0
DEC 14,354,891  -                  $0 3,713,920 $0 3,288,702 $0 21,357,513     -                  $0
Total 296,414,092 173,266,571 -                  $13,861,326 54,898,907 33,801,958 $2,704,157 95,399,542 80,599,427 $6,447,954 446,712,540   287,667,955   $23,013,436

Note: Price per MWh is $80.00

Tri-Dam Power Authority - Sand Bar

Average 

Generation  

(1958-2018)

2022 Net 

Generation 

(kWh)

2022   Energy 

Revenue

PG&E 

Coordination 

Payment

Total 

Revenue
JAN 4,663,654    11,591,430     $927,314 $0 # $927,314
FEB 3,946,606    7,422,672       $593,814 $0 # $593,814
MAR 5,290,014    -                  $0 $0 # $0
APR 6,873,822    7,146,240       $571,699 $0 # $571,699
MAY 8,065,189    7,151,326       $572,106 $0 # $572,106

JUN 8,750,023    8,488,900       $679,112 $0 # $679,112
JUL 9,133,101    6,996,309       $559,705 $0 # $559,705
AUG 8,560,581    1,083,010       $86,641 $0 # $86,641
SEP 6,928,285    $0 $0 # $0
OCT 4,898,944    $0 $0 # $0
NOV 2,947,604    $0 $0 # $0
DEC 5,554,123    $0 $0 # $0
Total 75,611,948 49,879,885 $3,990,391 $0 $3,990,391



$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Tri-Dam Project
Generation Revenue

2019 2020 2021 2022



 -

 10,000

 20,000

 30,000

 40,000

 50,000

 60,000

 70,000

 80,000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Tri-Dam Project
Total Generation - MWh

2019 2020 2021 2022 Historical



 -

 10,000

 20,000

 30,000

 40,000

 50,000

 60,000

 70,000

 80,000

 90,000

 100,000

 110,000

 120,000

 130,000

 140,000

 150,000

 160,000

 170,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Tri-Dam Project
Storage AF - Donnells & Beardsley

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022



Another system of extreme heat—expected to bar-
becue much of the western U.S. through the holiday 
weekend—caused a sharp uptick in demand and a 
stratospheric spike in most regional energy prices.

Forecasters expect “extreme heat over the Labor 
Day weekend,” according to the U.S. Energy Informa-
tion Administration. Average temperatures in River-

The forecast prompted the California Independent 
System Operator on Aug. 31 to request an emergency 
proclamation from Gov. Gavin Newsom “to open up 
more resources,” which he issued. 

and transmission, and a reduction of energy imports 
could affect power supplies,” the grid operator said.

Additionally, Southern California Gas Co. issued a 
natural gas curtailment watch for the SoCalGas and 
San Diego Gas & Electric service territories starting 
Aug. 30, in effect until further notice. 

Palo Verde daytime power saw the most dramatic 

California-Oregon Border peak power, which rocketed 
-

was also the lowest regional price for daytime power.
Off-peak power values gained between roughly 

the hub values were above $100. 

trading. Southern California Border gained the most, 
-

est regional price. Prices for SoCal CityGate and PG&E 
CityGate were not available, according to Enerfax.

The EIA said natural gas use by the power sector in 

In August, the average high peak price at Henry 

PG&E CityGate posted the highest price of the month at 

-
ally trended higher compared with the year prior. Palo 



CALIFORNIA MAJOR WATER SUPPLY RESERVOIRS
CURRENT CONDITIONS

Midnight - September 8, 2022

Updated 09/09/2022 06:48 AM

LEGEND

Capacity
(TAF)

% of Capacity | % of Hist Avg

Hist Avg

Historical
Average

Oroville
36% | 64%

Shasta
34% | 58%

Folsom
42% | 78%

New Bullards Bar
68% | 103%

Trinity
24% | 37%

Sonoma
30% | 55%

San Luis
27% | 68%

Cachuma
36% | 53%

Data From: Sep 7

Casitas
29% | 40%

Castaic
35% | 42%

Data From: Sep 7

Diamond Valley
64% | 85% Millerton

51% | 99%
Pine Flat

13% | 41%

Data From: Sep 7

Camanche
49% | 78%

New Melones
26% | 46%

Don Pedro
54% | 76%

McClure
24% | 45%



 
 

 

 
 
September 7, 2022        
 
 
Tri Dam Project 
Peter Reitkerk 
Scot Moody 
P.O. Box 1158 
Pinecrest, CA 95364 
 
 
Re:  July 2022 Invoices 
 
 
Dear Mr. Reitkerk and Mr. Moody: 
 
Enclosed are invoices for consulting services provided by FISHBIO during August. 
Services provided for each project are summarized below.    
 
Lifecycle monitoring 
During August we conducted the annual summer O. mykiss census (snorkel surveys). 
Similar surveys are also being conducted elsewhere in the San Joaquin Basin as described 
in the enclosed field report. 
 
Publications 
During August revisions to the manuscript presenting results of predator diet were 
completed for the paper to be submitted for publication. A manuscript regarding striped 
bass occupancy patterns is in final editing and will also be submitted for publication shortly 
thereafter.  
 
Non-Native Investigation/ Predator Study 
Analysis of predator catch data continued during August and data were compiled into 
necessary forms for required reporting in compliance with study permits. Applications to 
renew some permits have been submitted and others are in development in anticipation of 
the annual renewal period opening soon. The first three chapters of the synthesis report 
were sent to the technical team for review following the latest technical team meeting 
August 24. During the technical team meeting NMFS also indicated that they are 
developing a predator control study plan for the Tuolumne River in response to recent 
legislation which encourages NMFS “to conduct a predator control pilot program on the 
Tuolumne River funded by the Modesto Irrigation District, the Turlock Irrigation District, 
and the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission. In implementing the program, NOAA 
should work with appropriate State agencies and consider and, as appropriate, adopt the 
implementation findings from the Stanislaus program.” NMFS expected to reach out to the 
Tuolumne Districts soon and to share a concept draft during September.s 
 



 
 

 

 
Budget Summary 

2022 
Life-cycle 

Monitoring Publications Consulting Non-natives TOTAL 
Jan  $  14,420.93   $             -     $             -     $     41,998.79   $     56,419.72  
Feb  $  29,685.33   $  19,297.50   $             -     $     80,925.68   $   129,908.51  
Mar  $  21,981.66   $    4,302.50   $             -     $     86,368.95   $   112,653.11  
Apr  $  22,586.65   $    3,945.00   $      150.00   $     76,074.51   $   102,756.16  
May  $  10,853.61   $    2,885.00   $             -     $     61,864.22   $     75,602.83  
Jun  $    4,303.43   $    9,870.00   $             -     $     38,622.22   $     52,795.65  
Jul  $    3,905.00   $    9,290.00   $      450.00   $     21,687.04   $     35,332.04  
Aug  $  36,350.64   $  13,402.50   $             -     $     34,471.54   $     84,224.68  

TOTAL  $144,087.25   $  62,992.50   $      600.00   $   442,012.95   $   649,692.70  
Estimated 2022  $150,000.00   $125,000.00   $  25,000.00   $   475,000.00   $   775,000.00  

Remaining  $    5,912.75   $  62,007.50   $  24,400.00   $     32,987.05   $   125,307.30  
 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Andrea Fuller 



 
 

1 

SJB August Field Report 
 
 
Fall-run Adult Migration Monitoring 
 
The 2022 monitoring season for adult fall-run Chinook is approaching in the San Joaquin 
Basin. The Stanislaus River weir will be installed the week of September 12 while the 
Tuolumne River weir installation is planned for late-September.  
 
Summer Snorkel Surveys 
 
Summer snorkel surveys have been conducted on the Stanislaus and Calaveras River and 
will soon be conducted on the Tuolumne River for an annual census of O. mykiss 
abundance. Snorkel surveys were conducted on the Stanislaus River August 8–18 between 
Goodwin Dam and Orange Blossom Bridge excluding the canyon reach which will be 
surveyed the week of September 5. Surveys were conducted on the Calaveras River August 
22 - September 2 from New Hogan Dam to Shelton Road. The Tuolumne River will be 
surveyed in early October after restoration work is completed at Bobcat Flat. Preliminary 
abundance estimates of all O. mykiss should be available in a few weeks following data 
entry and QC of the data.  
 
San Joaquin River E-fishing 
 
The final electrofishing survey of the season was conducted on August 15-16 in the San 
Joaquin River, Grant Line Canal, and Old River regions of the South Delta. Only fixed 
units (ten sites that are repeated every month) were sampled to increase the number of 
tagged fish in the system and recapture previously tagged fish to improve abundance 
estimates. Catch during the summer has largely consisted of black bass and sunfishes with 
an occasional catfish and/or striped bass. During August, a total of 264 fish (208 
largemouth bass, eight striped bass, and 17 catfish) were captured during the month, plus 
14 recaptures (all largemouth bass).  
 
Based on a desire to collect additional data during low flow conditions in the San Joaquin 
River, a location for a stream-wide PIT antenna was identified just upstream of the BCID 
diversion. This antenna will provide re-sight data on tagged fish, which will help refine 
abundance estimates and provided more clues to striped bass movement patterns. Between 
August 10 – 20, eight individual fish were detected from four different projects: Native 
Fish Plan (NFP; Stanislaus River), San Joaquin Predator Study (fykes), Delta E-fishing 
Study, and San Joaquin River Restoration Program (SJRRP).  Two striped bass were 
detected from the NFP; three channel catfish were detected from the fyke study; two 
largemouth bass were detected from Delta e-fishing; and two unknown species were 
detected from the SJRRP. The reader is scheduled to be downloaded again the end of this 
week. 
 



 
 
 

 

TRI-DAM  
 

POWER 
 

AUTHORITY 
  



 
 

 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

AGENDA 

TRI-DAM POWER AUTHORITY 

 of THE OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT and    

THE SOUTH SAN JOAQUIN IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

SEPTEMBER 15, 2022  
Start time is immediately following the Tri-Dam Project meeting 

which begins at 9:00 AM 

 

Oakdale Irrigation District 

1205 East F Street 

Oakdale, CA  95361 

* SEE BELOW FOR INSTRUCTIONS REGARDING PUBLIC 

COMMENT AND PARTICIPATION 
 
 

NOTICE:  Coronavirus (COVID-19) 

 

A COMPLETE COPY OF THE AGENDA PACKET WILL BE AVAILABLE ON THE 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT WEB SITE (www.oakdaleirrigation.com) ON 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2022 AT 9:00 A.M.  ALL WRITINGS THAT ARE PUBLIC 

RECORDS AND RELATE TO AN AGENDA ITEM WHICH ARE DISTRIBUTED TO A 

MAJORITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO THE 

MEETING NOTICED ABOVE WILL BE MADE AVAILABLE ON THE OAKDALE 

IRRIGATION DISTRICT WEB SITE (www.oakdaleirrigation.com). 

 

INFORMATION FOR MEETING DURING CONTINUED PROCLAIMED STATE 

OF EMERGENCY   

(Effective 3/27/2020 – until further notice): 

 

Pursuant to California Governor Gavin Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20, a local 

legislative body is authorized to hold public meetings via teleconferencing and to make 

public meetings accessible telephonically or otherwise electronically to all members of the 

public who wish to participate and to provide public comment to the local legislative body 

during the current health emergency. The Tri-Dam Project and Tri-Dam Power Authority 

Board of Directors (Tri-Dam Directors) will adhere to and implement the provisions of the 

Governor’s Executive Order related to the Brown Act and the utilization of technology to 

facilitate participation. 

 

*The location of the Tri-Dam meeting will be at the office of the Oakdale Irrigation District, 

1205 East F Street, Oakdale and will be open to the public based on a reservation system.  

Be advised these facilities only have 3 – 4 seats available for public access due to 

implemented protection measures for the COVID-19 virus.   

 

**Public members who wish to participate, listen to, and provide comment on agenda 

items can do so by telephone by calling 1 (669) 900-9128, Access Code: 358-572-1867#.  

All speakers commenting on Agenda Items are limited to five (5) minutes.   

http://www.oakdaleirrigation.com/
http://www.oakdaleirrigation.com/


 

Members of the public may also submit public comments in advance by e-mailing 

nfiez@oakdaleirrigation.com by 4:30 p.m., Wednesday, September 14, 2022.  

 

In addition to the mandatory conditions set forth above, the Tri-Dam Directors will use sound 

discretion and make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as reasonably possible to the 

provisions of the Brown Act, and other applicable local laws regulating the conduct of public 

meetings. 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, a person requiring an 

accommodation, auxiliary aid, or service to participate in this meeting should contact the 

Executive Assistant at (209) 840-5504, as far in advance as possible but no later than 24 

hours before the scheduled event.  Best efforts will be made to fulfill the request.  

 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

ROLL CALL: John Holbrook, Bob Holmes, Dave Kamper, Glenn Spyksma, Mike Weststeyn 

Brad DeBoer, Herman Doornenbal, Tom Orvis, Linda Santos, Ed Tobias 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR     ITEMS 1 – 3   
 

Matters listed under the consent calendar are considered routine and will be acted upon under 

one motion.  There will be no discussion of these items unless a request is made to the Board 

President by a Director or member of the public.  Those items will be considered at the end 

of the consent items. 
 

1. Discuss and consider adoption of Resolution TDPA 2022-13 to implement telecom-

ferencing requirements during a proclaimed state of emergency.  

2. Approve the regular board meeting minutes of August 25, 2022. 

3. Approve the June, July and August statement of obligations. 

  

ACTION CALENDAR       ITEMS 4 - 5 
 
4. Consider approval of the 2021 Audited Financial Statements – Presentation by Fedak & 

Brown LLP. 
 

5. Review and take possible action to approve the Financial Statements for the six months 

ending June 30, 2022. 

 

ADJOURNMENT          ITEMS 6 - 7 
  

6. Commissioner Comments. 

7. Adjourn to the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

mailto:nfiez@oakdaleirrigation.com


BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

            Date:  9/15/2022 
            Staff:  Mia Brown 

 

 
SUBJECT:  Resolution TDPA 2022-13 to Implement Teleconferencing Requirements during a 

Proclaimed State of Emergency 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution TDPA 2022-13 proclaiming a local emergency, 

which authorizes remote teleconference meetings.  
 

 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
 
On September 17, 2021 Assembly Bill 361 (AB 361) was signed and took effect on October 1, 2021.  
AB 361 replaced some provisions of Executive Order N-29-20, which allows local legislative bodies to 
hold remote teleconference meetings.  The resolution will allow the Authority a thirty (30) day period to 
continue remote meetings, or until conditions improve or the Executive Order is cancelled.  A 
subsequent resolution will need to be passed every thirty days to continue the remote meetings.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Resolution TDPA 2022-13 
 
 
 

 

Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
 
VOTE:  
OID:  DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Orvis (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) Tobias (Yes/No)  
 
SSJID: Holbrook (Yes/No) Holmes (Yes/No) Kamper (Yes/No) Spyksma (Yes/No) Weststeyn 
(Yes/No) 



TRI-DAM POWER AUTHORITY 

RESOLUTION No. TDPA 2022-13 

RESOLUTION TO IMPLEMENT TELECONFERENCING REQUIREMENTS 

DURING A PROCLAIMED STATE OF EMERGENCY 

 

WHEREAS, the Ralph M. Brown Act requires that all meetings of a legislative body of a local 

agency be open and public and that any person may attend and participate in such meetings; 

 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act allows for legislative bodies to hold meetings by teleconference, 

but imposes specific requirements for doing so;  

 

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, in order to address the need for public meetings during the 

present public health emergency, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order No. N-29-20, 

suspending the Act’s teleconferencing requirements; and 

 

WHEREAS, on June 11, 2021, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order No. N-8-21, 

continuing the suspension of the Brown Act’s teleconferencing requirements through September 

30, 2021; and  

 

WHEREAS, these Executive Orders allowed legislative bodies to meet virtually as long as 

certain notice and accessibility requirements were met; and  

 

WHEREAS, the State Legislature amended the Brown Act through Assembly Bill No. 361 (AB 

361) on September 16, 2021; and  

 

WHEREAS, AB 361 amended the Brown Act so that a local agency may use teleconferencing 

without complying with the regular teleconferencing requirements of the Act, where the 

legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and makes certain 

findings; and  

 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 54953 requires that the legislative body make additional 

findings every 30 days in order to continue such teleconferencing. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Commissioners of the Tri-Dam Power Authority hereby 

finds, determines, declares, orders, and resolves as follows: 

 

1. That the foregoing recitals are true and correct and incorporates them by this reference. 

 

2. The Board of Commissioners (“Board”) of the Tri-Dam Power Authority (“TDPA”) 

finds, by a majority vote, the following: 

 

a. That there exists a proclaimed state of emergency; and 

 

b. State or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social 

distancing.  

 



3. TDPA staff is authorized to take all steps and perform all actions necessary to execute 

and implement this Resolution in compliance with Government Code section 54953. 

 

4. That this Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall remain in effect for thirty 

(30) days thereafter, provided the conditions set forth in Section 2 remain. 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Tri-Dam Power Authority 

this 15th day of September, 2022, by the following vote: 

 
 

 OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

 

 AYES:  

 NOES:  

 ABSENT:  
 

SOUTH SAN JOAQUIN IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

 

 AYES:  

 NOES:  

 ABSENT:  

 

TRI-DAM POWER AUTHORITY 

 

_________________________________ 

Herman Doornenbal, President 

 

_________________________________ 

Jeff Shields, Interim Secretary 

 



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

            Date: 9/15/2022 
            Staff: Dawn Driesen 

 

 
SUBJECT:  Tri-Dam Power Authority August 2022 Minutes 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Review and possible approval of August 25, 2022 Minutes  
 

 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
 Draft minutes attached. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Draft minutes attached. 
 
 
 

 

Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
 
VOTE:  
OID:  DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Orvis (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) Tobias (Yes/No)  
 
SSJID: Holbrook (Yes/No) Holmes (Yes/No) Kamper (Yes/No) Spyksma (Yes/No) Weststeyn 
(Yes/No) 



 

Page 1 
TDPA August 25, 2022 

 

TRI-DAM POWER AUTHORITY 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
 

August 25, 2022 

Strawberry, California 

 

The Commissioners of the Tri-Dam Power Authority met at the office of the Tri-Dam Project in 

Strawberry, California, on the above date for the purpose of conducting business of the Tri-Dam 

Power Authority, pursuant to the resolution adopted by each of the respective Districts on October 

14, 1984. 

 

President Doornenbal called the meeting to order at 10:09 a.m. 

 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: 

 

 OID COMMISSIONERS     SSJID COMMISSIONERS 

 BRAD DeBOER      BOB HOLMES 

 HERMAN DOORNENBAL     GLENN SPYKSMA 

 ED TOBIAS       MIKE WESTSTEYN 

 

Also Present: 

Jeff Shields, Interim General Manager, Tri-Dam Project; Scot A. Moody, General Manager, OID; 

Peter Rietkerk, General Manager, SSJID; Sharon Cisneros, Chief Financial Officer, OID; Sonya 

Williams, Finance and Administration Manager, SSJID; Mia Brown, General Counsel, SSJID; 

Susan Larson, License Compliance Coordinator, Tri-Dam Project; Chris Tuggle, Operations and 

Maintenance Manager, Tri-Dam Project. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

None. 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

ITEM #1  Discussion and possible action to approve the regular board meeting minutes 

of July 21, 2022. 

ITEM #2  Review and Take Possible Action to Adopt Resolution TDPA 2022-10 to 

implement teleconferencing requirements during a  proclaimed state of emergency. 

  

TRI-DAM POWER AUTHORITY 

RESOLUTION No. TDPA 2022-10 
RESOLUTION TO IMPLEMENT TELECONFERENCING REQUIREMENTS 

DURING A PROCLAIMED STATE OF EMERGENCY 
 



 

Page 2 
TDPA August 25, 2022 

 

WHEREAS, the Ralph M. Brown Act requires that all meetings of a legislative body of a local 
agency be open and public and that any person may attend and participate in such meetings; 

 
WHEREAS, the Brown Act allows for legislative bodies to hold meetings by teleconference, 
but imposes specific requirements for doing so; 

 
WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, in order to address the need for public meetings during the 
present public health emergency, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order No. N-29-20, 
suspending the Act’s teleconferencing requirements; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 11, 2021, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order No. N-8-21, 
continuing the suspension of the Brown Act’s teleconferencing requirements through September 
30, 2021; and 

 
WHEREAS, these Executive Orders allowed legislative bodies to meet virtually as long as 
certain notice and accessibility requirements were met; and 

 
WHEREAS, the State Legislature amended the Brown Act through Assembly Bill No. 361 
(AB361) on September 16, 2021; and 

 
WHEREAS, AB 361 amended the Brown Act so that a local agency may use teleconferencing 
without complying with the regular teleconferencing requirements of the Act, where the 
legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and makes certain 
findings; and 

 
WHEREAS, Government Code section 54953 requires that the legislative body make additional 
findings every 30 days in order to continue such teleconferencing. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Commissioners of the Tri-Dam Power Authority hereby 
finds, determines, declares, orders, and resolves as follows: 

 
1.   That the foregoing recitals are true and correct and incorporates them by this reference. 

 
2.   The Board of Commissioners (“Board”) of the Tri-Dam Power Authority (“TDPA”) finds, 

by a majority vote, the following: 
 

a.   That there exists a proclaimed state of emergency; and 
 

b.   State or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote 
social distancing. 

3.   TDPA staff is authorized to take all steps and perform all actions necessary to 
execute and implement this Resolution in compliance with Government Code 
section 54953. 

 
4.   That this Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall remain in effect for thirty 

(30) days thereafter, provided the conditions set forth in Section 2 remain. 



 

Page 3 
TDPA August 25, 2022 

 

 

 

Director Tobias moved to approve the consent calendar as presented.  Director Holmes 

seconded the motion. 

 

The motion passes by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: Holmes, Spyksma, Weststeyn, DeBoer, Doornenbal, Tobias 

NOES:  None 

ABSTAINING:  None 

ABSENT:  Holbrook, Kamper, Orvis, Santos 

 

ACTION CALENDAR 

 

ITEM #3 Review and Take Possible Action to Adopt Resolution TDPA 2022-11 for 

Designation of Bank Account Signatories on the Oak Valley Community Bank and the US 

Bank accounts. 

 

Director Weststeyn moved to approve as presented.  Director DeBoer seconded the motion. 

 

The motion passes by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: Holmes, Spyksma, Weststeyn, DeBoer, Doornenbal, Tobias 

NOES:  None 

ABSTAINING:  None 

ABSENT:  Holbrook, Kamper, Orvis, Santos 

 

TRI-DAM POWER AUTHORITY 

Oakdale Irrigation District 

South San Joaquin Irrigation District 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. TDPA 2022-11 
 

DESIGNATION OF BANK ACCOUNTS AND SIGNATORIES 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Commissioners of said Tri-Dam Power Authority desire that specific persons 
be authorized to deposit funds in and withdraw funds from said accounts, with the full power to 
endorse and sign documents required to accomplish such purposes. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the specific accounts referred to and the persons 
designated to sign on each of said accounts together with their respective official titles, are as 
follows: 

 
BANK: Oak Valley Community Bank – Oak Tree Checking - Public 

 



 

Page 4 
TDPA August 25, 2022 

 

CHECK SIGNATORIES: 
 

Peter M. Rietkerk, General Manager, South San Joaquin Irrigation District 
Scot A. Moody, General Manager, Oakdale Irrigation District 
Sharon Cisneros, Chief Financial Officer, Oakdale Irrigation District 
Sonya Williams, Finance and Administration Manager, South San Joaquin Irrigation District 

 Jeffrey K. Shields, Interim General Manager, Tri-Dam Project 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that two signatures from the “CHECK SIGNATORIES” listed 
above are required on checks. 

 
 
ITEM #4 Review and Take Possible Action to Adopt Resolution TDPA 2022-12 for 

Designation of Bank Account Signatories on the California Local Agency Investment 

Fund (LAIF) accounts. 

 

Director Weststeyn moved to approve as presented.  Director Tobias seconded the motion. 

 

The motion passes by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: Holmes, Spyksma, Weststeyn, DeBoer, Doornenbal, Tobias 

NOES:  None 

ABSTAINING:  None 

ABSENT:  Holbrook, Kamper, Orvis, Santos 

 

TRI-DAM POWER AUTHORITY  
Oakdale Irrigation District 

South San Joaquin Irrigation District 
 

RESOLUTION NO. TDPA 2022-12 
 

AUTHORIZING INVESTMENT OF MONIES IN THE LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND 
 

AGENCY ADDRESS:  31885 Old Strawberry Road AGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 209-965-3996 

                                       Strawberry, CA 95375 

 WHEREAS, The Local Agency Investment Fund is established in the State Treasury under 

Government Code section 16429.1 et. seq. for the deposit of money of a local agency for 

purposes of investment by the State Treasurer; and 

WHEREAS, the Commissioners hereby find that the deposit and withdrawal of money in the Local 

Agency Investment Fund in accordance with Government Code section 16429.1 et. seq. for the 

purpose of investment as provided therein is in the best interests of the Tri-Dam Project; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Commissioners authorizes the deposit and 

withdrawal of the Tri-Dam Projects monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund in the State 

Treasury in accordance with Government Code section 16429.1 et. seq. for the purpose of 

investment as provided therein. 



 

Page 5 
TDPA August 25, 2022 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, as follows: 

Section 1. The following Oakdale Irrigation District, and South San Joaquin Irrigation District 

officers holding the title(s) specified herein below or their successors in office are each hereby 

authorized to order the deposit or withdrawal of monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund and 

may execute and deliver any and all documents necessary or advisable in order to effectuate the 

purposes of this resolution and the transaction contemplated hereby. 

ITEM #5 Review and Take Possible Action to Approve 2022 Annual FERC Administrative 

Fees. 

 

Director Tobias moved to approve as presented.  Director Weststeyn seconded the motion. 

 

The motion passes by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: Holmes, Spyksma, Weststeyn, DeBoer, Doornenbal, Tobias 

NOES:  None 

ABSTAINING:  None 

ABSENT:  Holbrook, Kamper, Orvis, Santos 

 

ITEM #6 Discussion and update on the Status of the 2021 Audited Financial Report and 

other Finance Activities. 

 

Jeff Shields gave an update on the status of the 2021 Audited Financial Report. 

 

ITEM #7 COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

None. 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Commissioner Holmes adjourned the meeting at 12:21 p.m. 
 
The next Board of Commissioners meeting will be September 15, 2022 at the office of the 
Oakdale Irrigation District, Oakdale, California immediately following the Tri-Dam Project 
meeting, which commences at 9:00 a.m. 
 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
________________________ 
Jeff Shields, Interim Secretary 
Tri-Dam Power Authority 



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

           Date: 9/15/2022  
           Staff: Genna Modrell  

 

 
SUBJECT:  Tri-Dam Power Authority Statement of Obligations June, July & August  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Recommend Approval of June, July & August Statement of Obligations  
 

 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
Submitted for approval is the June, July & August Statement of Obligations for Tri-Dam Power 
Authority. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: See Attachments 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Tri-Dam Power Authority Statement of Obligations 
 

 

Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
 
VOTE:  
OID:  DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Orvis (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) Tobias (Yes/No)  
 
SSJID: Holbrook (Yes/No) Holmes (Yes/No) Kamper (Yes/No) Spyksma (Yes/No) Weststeyn 
(Yes/No) 



     Tri-Dam Power Authority

     Statement 

    of 

    Obligations

June 1, 2022 to June 30, 2022



TRI-DAM POWER AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

Period Covered
June 1, 2022 to June 30, 2022

Total Obligations: 4 checks in the amount of $7,025.80

(See attached Vendor Check Register Report)

CERTIFICATION

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT SOUTH SAN JOAQUIN IRRIGATION DISTRICT

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Thomas D. Orvis John Holbrook

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Ed Tobias Robert A. Holmes

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Linda Santos Dave Kamper

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Herman Doornenbal Glenn Spyksma

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Brad DeBoer Mike Weststeyn

To:  Peter Rietkerk, SSJID General Manager:

THE UNDERSIGNED, EACH FOR HIMSELF, CERTIFIES THAT HE IS PRESIDENT OR SECRETARY OF THE TRI-

DAM POWER AUTHORITY; THAT THE AMOUNTS DESIGNATED ABOVE HAVE BEEN ACTUALLY, AND 

NECESSARILY AND PROPERLY EXPENDED OR INCURRED AS AN OBLIGATION OF THE TRI-DAM POWER 

AUTHORITY FOR WORK PERFORMED OR MATERIALS FURNISHED FOR OPERATIONS AND 

MAINTENANCE OF THE SAND BAR PROJECT; THAT WARRANTS FOR PAYMENT OF SAID AMOUNTS 

HAVE BEEN DRAWN ON THE SAND BAR PROJECT O & M CHECKING ACCOUNT AT OAK VALLEY 

COMMUNITY BANK, SONORA, CALIFORNIA.

TRI-DAM POWER AUTHORITY TRI-DAM POWER AUTHORITY

PRESIDENT, SECRETARY, 

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Herman Doornenbal, President          Date Jeff Shields, Interim Secretary       Date



Check Vendor No Vendor 

Name

Date Description Amount

208270 11389 Paris Kincaid Wasiewski 06/16/2022 Legal Matters 4,460.00

208267 10037 American Public Power Assn. 06/09/2022 Annual Membership Dues 1,071.80

208269 11343 Tim O'Laughlin 06/16/2022 990.00

208268 11327 Ulteig Engineers Inc. 06/09/2022 504.00

Report Total:  $         7,025.80 

Authority

June Checks by Amount 



     Tri-Dam Power Authority

     Statement 

    of 

    Obligations

July 1, 2022 to July 31, 2022



TRI-DAM POWER AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

Period Covered
July 1, 2022 to July 31, 2022

Total Obligations: 6 checks in the amount of $53,830.89

(See attached Vendor Check Register Report)

CERTIFICATION

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT SOUTH SAN JOAQUIN IRRIGATION DISTRICT

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Thomas D. Orvis John Holbrook

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Ed Tobias Robert A. Holmes

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Linda Santos Dave Kamper

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Herman Doornenbal Glenn Spyksma

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Brad DeBoer Mike Weststeyn

To:  Peter Rietkerk, SSJID General Manager:

THE UNDERSIGNED, EACH FOR HIMSELF, CERTIFIES THAT HE IS PRESIDENT OR SECRETARY OF THE TRI-

DAM POWER AUTHORITY; THAT THE AMOUNTS DESIGNATED ABOVE HAVE BEEN ACTUALLY, AND 

NECESSARILY AND PROPERLY EXPENDED OR INCURRED AS AN OBLIGATION OF THE TRI-DAM POWER 

AUTHORITY FOR WORK PERFORMED OR MATERIALS FURNISHED FOR OPERATIONS AND 

MAINTENANCE OF THE SAND BAR PROJECT; THAT WARRANTS FOR PAYMENT OF SAID AMOUNTS 

HAVE BEEN DRAWN ON THE SAND BAR PROJECT O & M CHECKING ACCOUNT AT OAK VALLEY 

COMMUNITY BANK, SONORA, CALIFORNIA.

TRI-DAM POWER AUTHORITY TRI-DAM POWER AUTHORITY

PRESIDENT, SECRETARY, 

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Herman Doornenbal, President          Date Jeff Shields, Interim Secretary       Date



Check Vendor No Vendor 

Name

Date Description Amount

208276 11413 Alliant Insurance Services Inc. 07/26/2022 Insurance 48,816.75

208271 11333 Fedak & Brown LLP 07/01/2022 2021 Audit 2,233.00

208272 10319 General Plumbing Supply Co Inc. 07/01/2022 Cooling Water Repair 1,785.45

208274 10439 McMaster-Carr Supply Co. 07/11/2022 544.00

208273 10454 Modesto Steel Co. 07/01/2022 226.69

208275 11343 Tim O'Laughlin, PLC 07/20/2022 225.00

Report Total:  $       53,830.89 

Authority

July Checks by Amount 



     Tri-Dam Power Authority

     Statement 

    of 

    Obligations

August 1, 2022 to August 31, 2022



TRI-DAM POWER AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

Period Covered
August 1, 2022 to August 31, 2022

Total Obligations: 7 checks in the amount of $29,143.38

(See attached Vendor Check Register Report)

CERTIFICATION

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT SOUTH SAN JOAQUIN IRRIGATION DISTRICT

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Thomas D. Orvis John Holbrook

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Ed Tobias Robert A. Holmes

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Linda Santos Dave Kamper

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Herman Doornenbal Glenn Spyksma

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Brad DeBoer Mike Weststeyn

To:  Peter Rietkerk, SSJID General Manager:

THE UNDERSIGNED, EACH FOR HIMSELF, CERTIFIES THAT HE IS PRESIDENT OR SECRETARY OF THE TRI-

DAM POWER AUTHORITY; THAT THE AMOUNTS DESIGNATED ABOVE HAVE BEEN ACTUALLY, AND 

NECESSARILY AND PROPERLY EXPENDED OR INCURRED AS AN OBLIGATION OF THE TRI-DAM POWER 

AUTHORITY FOR WORK PERFORMED OR MATERIALS FURNISHED FOR OPERATIONS AND 

MAINTENANCE OF THE SAND BAR PROJECT; THAT WARRANTS FOR PAYMENT OF SAID AMOUNTS 

HAVE BEEN DRAWN ON THE SAND BAR PROJECT O & M CHECKING ACCOUNT AT OAK VALLEY 

COMMUNITY BANK, SONORA, CALIFORNIA.

TRI-DAM POWER AUTHORITY TRI-DAM POWER AUTHORITY

PRESIDENT, SECRETARY, 

_________________________________ ___________________________________

Herman Doornenbal, President          Date Jeff Shields, Interim Secretary       Date



Check Vendor No Vendor 

Name

Date Description Amount

208282 10289 Federal Energy Reg. Commission 08/25/2022 Annual Land Use Fee 23,582.84

208281 11327 Ulteig Engineers Inc. 08/11/2022 CAISO RIG Recertification 3,086.00

208280 11343 Tim O'Laughlin, PLC 08/11/2022 945.00

208277 11333 Fedak & Brown LLP 08/11/2022 745.00

208278 10319 General Plumbing Supply Co Inc. 08/11/2022 476.73

208279 10439 McMaster-Carr Supply Co. 08/11/2022 281.73

208283 10516 Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 08/25/2022 26.08

Report Total:  $       29,143.38 

Authority

August Checks by Amount 



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

           Date: 9/15/2022  
           Staff: Sharon Cisneros  

 

 
SUBJECT:  Tri-Dam Power Authority Fiscal Year 2021 Audited Financial Statements 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Recommend Approval of Fiscal Year 2021 Audited Financial Statements 
 

 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
Annually, the Tri-Dam Power Authority Financial Statements are audited by an independent, outside 
accounting firm. For Fiscal Year 2021, the accounting firm Fedak & Brown, LLP performed the audit for 
both Tri-Dam Project and Tri-Dam Power Authority. 
 
A draft of the Financial Statements will be distributed separately. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Tri-Dam Power Authority Fiscal Year 2021 Draft Audited Financial Statements 
 
 
 

 

Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
 
VOTE:  
OID:  DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Orvis (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) Tobias (Yes/No)  
 
SSJID: Holbrook (Yes/No) Holmes (Yes/No) Kamper (Yes/No) Spyksma (Yes/No) Weststeyn 
(Yes/No) 



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

           Date: 9/15/2022  
           Staff: Sharon Cisneros  

 

 
SUBJECT:  Tri-Dam Power Authority Financial Statements for the Six Months ending June 30, 

2022 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Review and take possible action to approve the Financial Statements for 

the Six Months ending June 30, 2022  
 

 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
As of the financial statement date of June 30, 2022, the Tri-Dam Power Authority (TDPA) cash assets 
increased by nearly $3M over the prior year primarily due to an increase in power sales of $2.5M 
compared to June 2021.   
 
TDPA has realized 77% of its Year to date budgeted revenues for 2022, and only utilized 37% of its 
budgeted operating expenses.  
 
Further details are available in the attachments. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: none 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Monthly Financial Report (unaudited) 
    
 

 

Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
 
VOTE:  
OID:  DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Orvis (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) Tobias (Yes/No)  
 
SSJID: Holbrook (Yes/No) Holmes (Yes/No) Kamper (Yes/No) Spyksma (Yes/No) Weststeyn 
(Yes/No) 



Tri-Dam Power Authority
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2022 and 2021
(unaudited)

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
Assets
Cash 5,250,955$                 2,253,292$                 
Accounts Receivable 679,112                      274,302                      
Prepaid Expenses -                              3,839                          
Inventory 5,424                          5,424                          
Capital Assets 45,275,608                 45,375,609                 
Accumulated Depreciation (22,729,125)                (22,331,915)                
Intangible Assets -                              -                              
Other Assets 627                             -                              
    Total Assets 28,482,601                 25,580,551                 

Liabilities
Accounts Payable 3,342                          -                              
Due to Tri-Dam Project 233,004                      201,988                      
Long-Term Liabilities -                              -                              
    Total Liabilities 236,346                      201,988                      

Net Position
Net Position - Beginning of Year 26,363,000                 27,642,989                 
Distributions (800,000)                     (2,505,000)                  
YTD Net Revenues 2,683,255                   240,574                      
    Total Net Position 28,246,255                 25,378,563                 

Total Liabilities and Net Position 28,482,601$               25,580,551$               



Tri-Dam Power Authority
Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Period Ending June 30, 2022 (unaudited)

YTD YTD YTD Budget Budget Prior Year Prior Year Prior Year 2022
Budget Actual Variance Variance % Actual Variance Variance % Budget

1 Operating Revenues
2 Power Sales 2,171,813$  3,344,045$  1,172,232$   54.0% 834,780$    2,509,265$   300.6% 4,343,626$  
3 Other Revenue -               -               -                -                -              -                -                -               
4  Total Operating Revenues 2,171,813    3,344,045    1,172,232     54.0% 834,780      2,509,265     301% 4,343,626    
5
6 Operating Expenses
7 Salaries and Wages 178,525       134,956       (43,569)         -24.4% 131,930      3,026            2.3% 357,049       
8 Benefits and Overhead 119,185       53,081         (66,104)         -55.5% 59,584        (6,503)           -10.9% 238,370       
9 Operations 11,165         1,709           (9,456)           -84.7% 3,867          (2,158)           -55.8% 22,330         

10 Maintenance 59,750         5,434           (54,316)         -90.9% 14,296        (8,862)           -62.0% 119,500       
11 General & Administrative 169,556       130,028       (39,528)         -23.3% 142,723      (12,695)         -8.9% 339,112       
12 Depreciation & Amortization 246,099       248,760       2,661            1.1% 244,875      3,885            1.6% 492,198       
13  Total Operating Expenses 784,280       573,968       (210,312)       -26.8% 597,275      (23,307)         -3.9% 1,568,559    
14
15    Net Income From Operations 1,387,534    2,770,077    1,382,544     99.6% 237,505      2,532,572     1066.3% 2,775,067    
16
17 Nonoperating Revenues  (Expenses)
18 Investment Earnings 5,000           136              (4,864)           -97.3% 3,068          (2,932)           -95.6% 10,000         
19 Interest Expense -               -               -                -                -              -                0.0% -               
22  Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 5,000           136              (4,864)           -97.3% 3,068          (2,932)           -95.6% 10,000         
23
24 Net Revenues 1,392,534$  2,770,213$  1,377,679$   98.9% 240,573$    2,529,640$   1051.5% 2,785,067$  
25
26
27 Memo:
28 Capital Expenditures 228,000$     86,959$       (141,041)$     456,000$     



Tri-Dam Power Authority
Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Period Ending June 30, 2022 (unaudited)

MTD MTD MTD Budget Budget Prior Year Prior Year Prior Year 2022
Budget Actual Variance Variance % MTD Actual MTD Var Variance % Budget

1 Operating Revenues
2 Power Sales 361,969$     679,112$     317,143$      87.6% 101,948$    577,164$    566.1% 4,343,626$    
3 Other Operating Revenue -               -               -                -                -              -                -                 
4  Total Operating Revenues 361,969       679,112       317,143        87.6% 101,948      577,164      566.1% 4,343,626      
5
6 Operating Expenses
7 Salaries and Wages 29,754         21,725         (8,029)           -27.0% 18,347        3,378          18.4% 357,049         
8 Benefits and Overhead 19,864         8,421           (11,443)         -57.6% 7,428          993             13.4% 238,370         
9 Operations 1,861           -               (1,861)           -100.0% 884             (884)            -100.0% 22,330           

10 Maintenance 9,958           (10,402)        (20,360)         -204.5% 236             (10,638)       -4507.6% 119,500         
11 General & Administrative 28,259         15,806         (12,453)         -44.1% 35,552        (19,746)       -55.5% 339,112         
12 Depreciation & Amortization 41,017         40,786         (231)              -0.6% 40,812        (26)              -0.1% 492,198         
13  Total Operating Expenses 130,713       76,336         (54,377)         -41.6% 103,259      (26,923)       -26.1% 1,568,559      
14
15    Net Income From Operations 231,256       602,776       371,520        160.7% (1,311)         604,087      -46063.6% 2,775,067      
16
17 Nonoperating Revenues  (Expenses)
18 Investment Earnings 833              17                (816)              -98.0% 390             (373)            -95.6% 10,000           
19 Interest Expense -               -               -                -                -              -              0.0% -                 
22  Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 833              17                (816)              -98.0% 390             (373)            -95.6% 10,000           
23
24 Net Revenues 232,089$     602,793$     370,704$      159.7% (921)$          603,714$    -65520.0% 2,785,067$    
25
26
27 Memo:
28 Capital Expenditures 38,000$       -$             (38,000)$       456,000$       



Tri-Dam Power Authority
Cash Flow 

 2022  
Month

Power      
Sales

Other   
Receipts

Cash    
Payments Distributions

Monthly Net 
Cash Flow

YTD Net Cash 
Flow

Jan 893,736$        29$               8,162$            800,000$        85,603$          85,603$            
Feb 927,314          21                 13,697            -                  913,638          999,241            
Mar 593,814          14                 5,198              -                  588,630          1,587,870         
Apr -                  4                   94,475            -                  (94,471)           1,493,400         
May 571,699          51                 20,069            -                  551,680          2,045,080         
June 572,106          35,811          7,026              600,891          2,645,971         
July -                  2,645,971         
Aug -                  2,645,971         
Sept -                  2,645,971         
Oct -                  2,645,971         
Nov -                  2,645,971         
Dec -                  2,645,971         
Total 3,558,669$     35,929$        148,627$        800,000$        2,645,971$     

Budget 6,048,956$     20,000$        1,519,363$     

Budget 
-$                Debt Payments (P&I)

1,063,363       O&M Payments
456,000          Capital Payments

1,519,363$     


	Project Agenda
	1. Resolution 2022-15 Teleconference 
	2. Minutes
	3. Statement of Obligations June, July & August
	4. 2023 Medical Plan Renewal 
	5. 2023 Dental Plan Renewal
	6. 2023 VSP Plan Renewal
	7. 2021 Audited Financials - Fedak & Brown Presentation
	8. Financial Statements 6 mo. ending June 30, 2022
	9. Resolution TDP 2022-16 District Distribution
	10. Hells Half Acre - Roadway Design Services
	11. Tulloch Spillway Road - Design & Eng. Phase 1
	12. PG&E Islanding Letter Agreement
	13. Re-roof Donnells Powerhouse & Cottage
	14.  Staff Reports
	15. Generation Report
	16. FishBio 
	Authority Agenda
	1. Resolution 2022-13 Teleconference
	2. Minutes
	3. Statement of Obligations June, July & August
	4. 2021 Audited Financials - Fedak & Brown Presentation
	5. Financial Statements 6 mo. ending June 30, 2022

